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NOTICE

To
All Members
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Pursuant to Section 101 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, Notice is hereby given that the 43 Annual
General Meeting of the Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited will be held on Saturday,
August 26, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. (IST) at Shriram House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-
600017 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the standalone and consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 315t March, 2023 and the Reports of Directors’ and Auditor’s thereon.

2. To appoint a director in the place of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh [DIN: 00421577], who retires by
rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

There is no special business for this year.

For and on behalf of the Board
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Sd/-
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Date: May 10, 2023
Place: Chennai
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NOTES:

1.

10.

11.

12.

As there is no Special Business to be transacted in the 43" AGM of the Company, explanatory
statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details relating to
Special Business at the meeting, is not annexed hereto.

Corporate Members are requested to send a scanned copy (in PDF / JPG format) of the Board
Resolution authorising their representatives to attend this AGM, pursuant to Section 113 of the
Act, through e-mail at cs_sccl@shriram.com

The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding under Section
170 of the Act, the Register of contracts with related party, and contracts and bodies etc. in which
Directors are interested under Section 189 of the Act, will remain available for inspection during
the AGM, for which purpose Members are required to send an e-mail at cs_sccl@shriram.com.

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on a poll instead of him and the proxy need not be a member of the
Company.

The Instrument appointing the proxy should, however be deposited at the Registered Office of
the Company not less than forty-eight hours before the commencement of the meeting. A Proxy
form for the AGM is enclosed.

A Person can act as a Proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the
aggregate not more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting
rights. A member holding more than 10 percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy.

In case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the
joint holders should be stated.

Members /Proxies are requested to produce at the entrance, the attached admission slip for
admission to the meeting hall. Duplicate admission slips will not be provided at the hall. Members
who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID nos. for
easy identifications for attendance at the meeting.

The Annual Report for FY 2022-23 of the Company circulated to the Members of the Company,
will be made available on the Company’s website at www.shriramcredit.in

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and Statement setting out material facts are
open for inspection at the Registered Olffice of the Company on all working days between 10.00
a.m. and 12:00 noon up to the date of the 43¢ AGM.

Shareholders seeking any information with regards to Accounts are requested to write to the
Registered Office of the Company at least 15 days in advance so as to keep the information ready
at the Meeting.

The Road-map w.r.t the venue of the AGM is enclosed in the Notice.
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

(To be presented at the entrance)
43'1 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

on

Saturday, August 26, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. (IST)

at

Shriram House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017

Folio No. DP ID No. Client ID No.
Name of the Member Signature
Name of the Proxy holder Signature

1. Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting.

2.  Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the
Meeting.




SHRIRAM

Credit Shriram Credit Company Ltd.
Regd. Office: Shriram House, No.4, Burkit Road
T.Nagar, Chennai- 600 017

CIN: U65993TN1980PLC008215

MGT-11

PROXY FORM
(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014)

Name of the Member(S): ....vvviiritit it
Registered Address: ... .o.uiniiei i e
E-mail id: oo

Folio No./Client ID No.: ............... DP ID NO..cvecverereceieenennen

I/We, being the member(s) of SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED hereby appoint
R P ' U<
E-mail i ..o
AdAress: .o.oveieinii
Signature .......oovvveiiiiiii

or failing him/her

2. NAME: i
E-mail: ..o
AdAIess: ..oocvvieeiiieieeie e
Signature: ........cooviiiii e,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company to be held on Saturday, August 26, 2023 at 12:00 p.m. (IST) at Shriram
House, No. 4, Burkit Road, T.Nagar, Chennai-600017 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

1. To consider and adopt the audited standalone and consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 and the reports of the Board of
Directors and Auditors thereon; and the report of Auditors thereon.

2. To appoint a director in the place of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh [DIN: 00421577], who retires
by rotation and being eligible, seeks re-appointment.

Affix
Revenue
Stamp
Signed this , 2023
Signature of shareholder Signature of Proxy holder(s)

NOTE: This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the
Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting.
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ROUTE MAP OF VENUE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY
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To
The Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the Forty-third Annual Report together with the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ended 315t March, 2023 of Shriram Credit Company Limited (‘the Company’).

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Amount in Lakhs. (Rs.)
Financial year
PARTICULARS
Standalone Consolidated
2022-23* 2021-22 2022-23** 2021-22

Gross Income 5560.88 491.70 35,352.27 41,674.05
Profit ~ Before Interest  and 49.77 189.43 886.44 1,709.68
Depreciation
Finance Charges 218.54 158.43 781.97 389 57
Gross Profit (Hers) 31.00 104.47 1,320.11
Provision for Depreciation 69.77 2715 1,007.64 978.59
Net Profit Before Tax (238.54) 3.85 (903.17) 341.52
Provision for Tax

3126 1.38 21.11 286.89
Other Comprehensive Income 0.07 0.01 17.98 142.53
Minority Interest - - (125.00) (56.00)
Net Profit After Tax (269.80) 7.48 (924.28) 54.64
Opening Adjustments - = -
Transferred to Statutory Reserve ] (1.50) i (1.50)
Balance of Profit brought forward 7470.92 1,438.60 1524111 14,996.81
Balance  —available for 7201.20 1,444.59 14,604.46 15,241.11
appropriation
Net Interim Dividend Paid - - - -
Tax on Interim Dividend - - - -
Transfer to General Reserve = - = -
Surplus carried to Balance Sheet 7201.20 1,444.59 14,604.46 15,241.11

*the standalone figures for FY 2022-23 represents the merged financials of the wholly owned subsidiary viz
Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Pvt. Ltd., and the same has been effect in the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for FY 2022-23.
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**M/s Insight Commodities & Futures Pvt. Ltd. (“transferor company”) was amalgamated with M/s Shriram
Insight Share Brokers Ltd. (“transferee company”), a subsidiary company of Shriram Credit Company Ltd.
(SCCL),with effect from I* January, 2022 vide order of the Regional Director dated 19" May, 2022, which
was received post the finalisation of SCCL Consolidated Financial Statements for FY 2021-22. Hence, the
effect of this amalgamation is now given effect in the Consolidated Financial Statements for FY 2022-23.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Indian Stock Market continued to clock a monthly side in March with the Nifty 1.08% lower and the
Sensex down by 1.29% on the back of global uncertainties fuelled by a banking crisis and persisting
inflation. Major events including the collapse of the Silicon Valley Bank, Credit Suisse’s buyout by rival
UBS, global inflation and continuing geopolitical tensions kept the stock markets on the edge. Domestic
markets in India have been performing in line with the global correction and March volatility is expected
to spill over to April given the uncertain situation in the U.S. banking system.

Despite the challenging times for global market, your Company has during the year under review had
earned a standalone total income of Rs. 5560.88 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 269.72 Lacs as compared to the
total income of Rs. 491.70 Lacs and a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 7.48 Lacs earned during the last year.

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS

There is no change in the nature of business of the Company.

CHANGE IN CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, consequent to the amalgamation of Shriram Financial Products Solutions
(Chennai) Pvt. Ltd. (wholly owned subsidiary) with the Company, there is a change in capital structure of
the Company. The authorised equity share capital of the Company has increased from Rs. 25,00,00,000
to Rs. Rs. 27,00,00,000, the details of which are mentioned below:

The Authorised Share Capital: Rs.52,00,00,000 (2,70,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each and
2,50,00,000 Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10 each).

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Share Capital: Rs. 48,06,31,290 (2,40,63,129 Equity Shares of Rs.10
each and 2,40,00,000 Non Convertible Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs. 10/- each)

a. BUY BACK OF SECURITIES
The Company has not bought back any of its securities during the year under review.
b. SWEAT EQUITY

The Company has not issued any Sweat Equity Shares during the year under review.
c. BONUS SHARES

The Company has not issued any Bonus Shares during the year under review.
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d. RIGHTS ISSUE

The Company has not issued any rights shares during the year under review.

DIVIDEND & TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Keeping in view of the future strategic initiatives of the Company, your Directors did not recommend any
dividend for both equity and preference shares for the year ended 31 March, 2023.

Your Company has not transferred any sum to Statutory Reserve in terms of Section 45 IC of Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 as it has incurred loss for FY 2022-23.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION
FUND

The provisions of Section 125(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 do not apply as the Company has not
declared any dividend on equity as well as preference shares during last year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With an intent to maximize the overall shareholder value, effective and efficient use of infrastructure
facilities, optimum utilisation of financial resources, managerial, technical and marketing expertise and to
avail benefits of economies of scale, the Company (Transferee Company) was of the view to amalgamate
with its Wholly-owned subsidiary Company, Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Private
Limited (Transferor Company).

The Board of Directors of the Transferor as well as the Transferee Company had formulated a scheme of
Amalgamation for the benefit of the stakeholders of both the Companies along with the transfer and
vesting of the entire Undertaking of the Transferor Company with and into the Transferee Company
which was considered and approved by the Members of both the Companies in duly convened meetings.

In relation to the aforesaid, and in accordance with the provisions contained in Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Company had made an application along with the Scheme of Amalgamation
(Merger) as formulated by the Transferor and the Transferee Companies, to the Regional Director,
Chennai for their approval and the order (CP No. 03/S.233/2023-24) in Form CAA-12 approving the
same was passed on 18™ April, 2023 with effect from 01t January, 2023.

The Amalgamation will result in improving the financial position of the Amalgamated entity and
simplifying the group structure by eliminating multiple companies having similar objectives.
Additionally, the rationalization of Management and Administrative sector will contribute towards the
profitability of the Amalgamated entity.

Accordingly, the standalone financial statements of the Company for FY 2022-23 represents the merged
accounts of its wholly owned subsidiary, Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Private
Limited.
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DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

a. Appointment of Directors:

The re-appointment of Dr. Saleem K. Ali [holder of DIN: 07296177] as an Independent Director
of the Company was ratified for a second term of 5 years at the 42" Annual General Meeting of
the Company held on 26t July, 2022.

There were no other instances of appointment of Directors during the year under review.

b. Resignation/ Cessation of Directors:

There were no instances of resignation/ cessation of Directors during the year under review.

c¢. Retirement by Rotation:

Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh [holder of DIN: 00421577], Director will retire by rotation at the
ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible offered himself for re-appointment.

d. Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel:

Mr. Adbhut Shankar Pathak, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company who was also the
whole-time Key Managerial Personnel had been re-designated w.e.f 10t November, 2022, and
hence he ceases to hold the position of Chief Financial Officer & whole-time Key Managerial
Personnel. Necessary filings w.r.t the change in Designation have been filed with the Registrar of
companies, Tamil Nadu.

e. Change in Designation of the Directors:
There has been no change in the designation of the Directors during the year under review.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfil all the
requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify themselves to be
appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the relevant
rules.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

Your Company’s Board has the following committees:

Audit Committee

Risk Management Committee

Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Asset- Liability Management Committee
IT Strategy Committee

A




SHRIRAM

Credit Shriram Credit Company Ltd.
Regd. Office: Shriram House, No.4, Burkit Road

T.Nagar, Chennai- 600 017

CIN: U65993TN1980PLC008215

BOARD’S REPORT | 2023

7. Finance Committee
8. Securities Committee
9. Credit Committee

Details of terms of reference of the Committees have been duly approved by the Board of Directors and
they are available with the Company.

POLCIES OF THE COMPANY:

The Company has framed the following policies in line with the Companies Act, 2013 (including various
Rules and Regulations, amendments and modifications) and Master Direction issued by Reserve Bank of
India. The policies are reviewed from time to time to with latest amendments and circulars issued by the
concerned Regulators.

Policy on Related party Transactions
Nomination & Remuneration Policy
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Loan cum Credit Policy
Investment Policy
Liquidity Management Framework
Risk Management Policy
Asset- Liability Management Policy
Policy on Information Technology
Fair Practice Code
Policy on Prevention of Money Laundering
KYC Policy
. Fit & Proper Policy
Liquidity Policy
Interest Rate Policy
The Internal Guidelines on Corporate Governance

TOoBE T ATER ™M Q0 TR

The policies have been duly approved by the Board of Directors and can be accessed at website of the
Company i.e. www.shriramcredit.in

BOARD EVALAUTION

Annual Performance Evaluation was conducted for all Board Members as well as the working of the
Board and its Committees. This evaluation was led by the Chairman of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee with specific focus on performance and effective functioning of the Board. The
Board evaluation framework has been designed in compliance with the requirements under the
Companies Act, 2013. Evaluation of the Board was based on criteria such as composition and role of the
Board, Board communication and relationships, functioning of Board Committees, review of
performance of Executive Directors, succession planning, strategic planning, etc.

Evaluation of Committees was based on criteria such as adequate independence of each Committee,
frequency of meetings and time allocated for discussions at meetings, functioning of Board Committees
and effectiveness of its advice/recommendation to the Board, etc.

Evaluation of Directors was based on criteria such as participation and contribution in Board and
Committee Meetings, representation of shareholder interest and enhancing shareholder value, experience

5
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and expertise to provide feedback and guidance to top management on business strategy, governance, risk
and understanding of the organization’s strategy, etc.

DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In pursuance of Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

(a) in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable Accounting Standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

(b) the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of the
Company for that period;

(c) the directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

(d) the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

(e) the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

COMPANY’S POLICY RELATING TO DIRECTORS APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF
REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF THEIR DUTIES

The Company has formulated a Remuneration Policy relating to appointment of Directors, payment of
Managerial remuneration, Directors’ qualifications, positive attributes, independence of Directors and
other related matters as provided under Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. The policy is based
on the guiding principle aimed towards retaining and rewarding performers. The updated policy is
available on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in.

However, the payment of remuneration to the Directors is as per the Management policy and within the
permissible limits of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company also has in place Fit & Proper Policy
framed in terms of paragraph 72 (iv) of Chapter XI of Master Direction - Non-Banking Financial
Company - Systemically Important Non-Deposit taking Company and Deposit taking Company (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2016 dated September 1, 2016. The policy is available on the website of the Company
and can be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in.

The Company has constituted Nomination & Remuneration Committee in terms of Section 178(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualifications of the
Directors), Rules, 2014 wherein it has two Independent Directors. The Nomination & Remuneration
Committee consists of the following members:

Mr. D.V. Ravi

Mr. Umesh G.Revankar
Mr. Mohan Natarajan
Dr. Saleem K.Ali

aoc o
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Mr. Mohan Natarajan and Dr. Saleem K.ali are the Independent Directors in the Committee.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee has met two times.

The performance of the members of the Board, and the Board as a whole were evaluated at the meeting
of Independent Directors held on 10th February, 2023.

BOARD MEETINGS

During the year under review, the Board of Directors met 4 times respectively on 20t May, 2022, 5t
August, 2022, 11t November, 2022 and 10% February, 2023.

The intervening gap between any two meetings was within 120 days as prescribed by the Companies Act,
2013.

Name of the | Designation Board Meeting Dates No. of

Directors 20m S 1o To® meetings
May, August, | November | February attended
2022 2022 ,2022 ,2023

Akhilesh Kumar | Vice-Chairman & v 4 v 4 4

Singh Executive Director

M.R. Managing Director 4 4 v 4 4

Shashibhushan

D.V.Ravi Non-executive Director v v v v 4

Umesh G. | Non-executive Director 4 x 4 v 3

Revankar

Jasmit Singh | Non-executive Director 4 x x x 1

Gujral

Dr. Saleem | Independent Director v v v v 4

K.Ali

Mohan Independent Director v v v v 4

Natarajan

v’ Present in the meeting
x  Availed leave of absence

DISCLOSURE OF COMPOSITION OF AUDIT COMMITTEE AND PROVIDING VIGIL
MECHANISM

Your Company has constituted an Audit Committee in terms of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, wherein it has two
Independent Directors.

The Audit Committee consists of the following members:
a. Mr. D.V. Ravi
b. Mr. Umesh G.Revankar
¢. Mr. Mohan Natarajan
d. Dr. Saleem K.Ali
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Mr. Mohan Natarajan and Dr. Saleem K.ali are the Independent Directors in the Audit Committee.

During the Financial Year 2022-23, the Committee met four times. The meetings of the Audit Committee
were also attended by other Directors, Chief Financial Officer, and Permanent Invitees as the special
invitees. The Company Secretary acts as Secretary of the Committee.

The provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is not applicable to the Company.

REPORT ON PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF SUBSIDIARIES &
ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

The Company has eight subsidiary companies as on 31st March 2023, namely Shriram Asset
Management Company Ltd. (SAMCL), Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd. (SISBL), Shriram Fortune
Solutions Ltd. (SFSL), Shriram Wealth Ltd. (SWL), SEA Funds Management India Private Limited
(SEA), Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd (W2WS), Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd.(W2WB), subsidiary of
Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd and Way2Wealth Commodities Pvt. Ltd (W2WC), subsidiary of
Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd.

a. Shriram Asset Management Company Limited - The Company during the year under review
posted total income of Rs. 583.61 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 403.08 Lacs as compared to the total
income of Rs. 489.28 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 155.60 Lacs during the preceding year.

b. Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited - The Company during the year under review posted a
total income of Rs. 17516.23 Lacs and a Net profit after tax of Rs. 119.72 Lacs as compared to
total income of Rs. 20807.49 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 131.72 Lacs during the preceding year.

c. Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited - The Company during the year under review had
earned a total income of Rs. 5050.77 Lacs and a Net Profit after Tax Rs. 379.28 Lacs of as
compared to the total income of Rs. 5439.01 Lacs and a Net Profit after Tax of Rs. 549.99 Lacs
during the preceding year.

d. Shriram Wealth Limited [Previously known as Shriram Wealth Advisors Ltd.]- The
Company during the year under review posted total Company has earned a total income of
Rs. 965.29 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 90.20 Lacs as compared to the total income of Rs. 1223.44
Lacs and a loss of Rs. 231.40 Lacs during the preceding year.

e. SEA Funds Management India Private Limited - The Company during the year under review
posted total Company has earned a total income of Rs. 86.56 Lacs and a profit after tax of
Rs. 21.26 Lacs as compared to the total income of Rs. 100.94 Lacs and a profit after tax of
Rs. 17.49 Lacs during the preceding year.

f.  Way2Wealth Securities Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted a total
income of Rs. 993.68 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 186.15 Lacs in FY 2022-23 as compared to the total
income of Rs.678.29 Lacs and a profit after tax of Rs. 19.44 Lacs during the preceding year.

g. Way2Wealth Brokers Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted total
income of Rs. 5385.98 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 458.96 Lacs as compared to the total income of
Rs.6738.79 Lacs and loss of Rs. 77.04 Lacs during the preceding year.

8
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h. Way2Wealth Commodities Pvt. Ltd - The Company during the year under review posted total
income of Rs.22.03 Lacs and loss of Rs.36.38 Lacs as compared to the total income of
Rs. 109.39 Lacs and a loss of Rs. 6.43 Lacs during the preceding year.

The Company has prepared Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as required under Section
129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, which forms part of this Annual Report. Further, a statement
containing the salient features of the Financial Statements of our subsidiaries in the prescribed Form
AQOC-1 is attached to the Financial Statement of the Company.

In accordance with Section 136 of the Act, the Annual Report of Company, containing therein its
Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements are available on the Company’s website at
www.shrirameredit.in

SUBSIDIARIES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES ACQUIRED/ CEASED / REVIVED DURING THE
YEAR

a. Subsidiaries/ associate companies acquired:
During the year under review, no new subsidiaries or associates have been acquired by the Company.
b. Subsidiaries ceased during the year:

» Pursuant to the order passed by Regional Director, Chennai, approving the Scheme of
Amalgamation of the Company with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Shriram Financial Products
Solutions (Chennai) Private Limited, with effect from 15t January, 2023; the latter Company is
now amalgamated with the Company.

» Pursuant to the order passed by Regional Director, Chennai, the Scheme of Amalgamation of
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd. with its wholly-owned subsidiary, Insight Commodities &
Futures Private Limited, with effect from 1%t January, 2022; the latter Company is now
amalgamated with Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd.

Both Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Private Limited and Insight Commodities &
Futures Private Limited have ceased to become the subsidiaries of Shriram Credit Company Ltd.

DEPOSITS

As your Company is a Non-Deposit Taking Systemically Important NBFC (NDSI), it has not accepted
any deposits during the year under review. The Board of Directors have passed a Circular Resolution
dated 27 April, 2023 confirming that neither the Company has accepted deposits during the preceding
financial year nor it would not accept deposits for FY 2023-24 as well.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS. GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments covered under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013
form part of the notes to the Standalone Financial Statements forming a part of this Annual Report.
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Pursuant to Section 186 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013 loans or investments made, guarantee given or
security provided by a Non-Banking Finance Company in the ordinary course of its business are
exempted from disclosure in the Annual Report.

DETAILS IN RESPECT OF ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS WITH
REFERENCE TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In any industry, the processes and internal control systems play a critical role in the health of the
Company. The Company’s well-defined organisational structure, documented policy guidelines, defined
authority matrix and internal controls ensure efficiency of operations, compliance with internal policies
and applicable laws and regulations as well as protection of resources. Moreover, the Company
continuously upgrades these systems in line with the best available practices. The internal control system
is supplemented by regular reviews by management and standard policies and guidelines to ensure
reliability of financial and all other records to prepare Financial Statements and other data. The Audit
Committee of the Board reviews with management. The Audit Committee also monitors the implemented
suggestions given by management.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Your Company has historically adopted the practice of undertaking Related Party Transactions only in
the ordinary and normal course of business and at arm’s length as part of its philosophy of adhering to
highest ethical standards, transparency and accountability. In line with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board has approved a policy on related party transactions.

All Related Party Transactions are placed on a quarterly basis before the Audit Committee and before the
Board for approval.

None of the Related Party Transactions entered into by the Company were in conflict with the
Company’s interest. There are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the
Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc. which may have potential conflict
with the interest of the Company at large.

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties in Form AOC -2 are annexed herewith
as “Annexure A.”

AUDITORS

M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants [Firm Regn. No: 100186W] were re-appointed by the
Board of Directors as the Statutory Auditors for a second term of five years at the 42" Annual General
Meeting held on 26th July, 2022 until the conclusion of the 47t Annual General Meeting of the
Company, to be held in the year 2027.

M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, continue to act as the Statutory Auditors of
the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23.
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QUALIFICATIONS IN THE STATUTORY/SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORTS

Your Board has pleasure in confirming that no disqualifications, reservations or adverse remarks made by
M/s K.S.Aiyar & Co., Chartered Accountants [Firm Regn. No: 100186W], Statutory Auditors in their
audit report issued to the Members of the Company for the Financial Statements for the Financial Year
ended 315t March, 2023.

The provisions relating to submission of Secretarial Audit Report is not applicable to the Company.

FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS AS PER SEC 143 (12) OTHER THAN THOSE WHICH
ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There were no frauds reported by auditors in their report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Our CSR Committee consist of the following directors as it’s Members as on 315t March, 2023:

1. Mr. D.V.Ravi
2. Mr. Umesh G.Revankar
3. Mr. Mohan Natarajan, Independent Director

Members may kindly note that the Company is not falling under the criteria prescribed under Section
135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 for the past three Financial Years and hence the provisions of Section

135(2) to Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 cease to apply to the Company.

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is an ongoing process. The risk management includes identifying types of risks and its
assessment, risk handling and monitoring and reporting. The Company has in place a Risk Management
Policy, commensurate with its size of operations, which lays down a process for identification and
mitigation of risks that could materially impact its performance. The policy is available on the
Company’s website and be accessed at www.shriramcredit.in

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Information required pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is provided as
“Annexure B” to this report.
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DISCLOSURES ON “CORPORATE GOVERNANCE”

All elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension, etc. of the
Managerial Personnel:

Particulars of Remuneration of Mr. Akhilesh Kumar | Amount for FY 2022-23 (in lakhs)
Singh

Gross Salary 130.03

Incentives -

Bonus -

Perquisites -

Leave Encashment paid in FY 2022-23

Contribution to NPS 9.29

Shares held by him -

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE
ouTGO

The Company has no activity relating to Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption. There was
no foreign exchange inflow or outflow during the year under review.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3)of the Act read with Rule 12(1) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, an Annual Return of the Company for F.Y 2020 can be
accessed at the website of the Company at www.shriramcredit.in

The e-form MGT-7 shall be filed with the MCA upon the completion of the 43" Annual General Meeting
of the Company as required under Section 92 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there-
under and a copy of the same shall be furnished on the website of the Company to ensure compliance
with the Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017, effective from 28th August, 2020.

SIGNIFICANT & MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS

During the year, no significant /material orders were passed by regulators or courts or tribunals against
the Company, impacting the going concern status and company’s operations in future.

DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION & REDRESSAL), ACT 2013

The Company has in place an Anti-Sexual Harassment Policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Internal
Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual harassment. All
employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy.

12
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Pursuant to the provisions of Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, the complaints received thereunder and the details relating thereto
are as follows:

(a) Number of complaints received in the year: Nil

(b) Number of complaints disposed of during the year: Nil

(c) Number of cases pending more than ninety days: Nil

(d) Nature of action taken by the employer or district officer: Nil

It may be mentioned here that the Company has zero tolerance towards any action on the part of any
executive / staff which may fall under the ambit of ‘Sexual Harassment’ at workplace, and is fully
committed to upholding and maintaining the dignity of every women executive / staff working in the
Company.

EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME (ESOP)

Disclosure regarding Employee Stock Option Scheme (ESOP) is not applicable to the Company as the
Company has no ESOP scheme.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS

Your Board of Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e., SS-1 and SS-2, relating to
‘Meetings of the Board of Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by
the Company.

DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 (31 OF 2016)

During the year under review, there was no application made or any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

No loans were availed from any bank or financial institution during the year under review and
accordingly no details are required to be disclosed.

HUMAN RESOURCES

Our professionals are our most important assets. We are committed to hiring and retaining the best talent
and being among the industry’s leading employers. For this, we focus on promoting a collaborative,
transparent and participative organization culture, and rewarding individual contribution and innovation.
The focus of our human resources management is to enable our employees to navigate their next, not just
for clients, but also for themselves.

As we look back, we would like to thank all employees for their support and commitment throughout the
year.
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REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT — SHARE REGISTRY RELATED SERVICES

The share related registry operations have been delegated to our Registrar and Share Transfer Agent M/s.
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd., Kolkata (HO).

Address for correspondence:
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Ltd.
CK 5, Sector 11, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700091

Shareholders Grievance/ queries can be sent through email to any of the following designated email ids
isbcal@hotmail.com

Shareholders can also send their correspondence to the Company with respect to their shares, request for
annual reports and other shareholder grievances. The contact details are provided below:

Ms. Trina Nandi

Company Secretary

Shriram Credit Company Ltd.

CK 5, Sector 11, Salt Lake City, Kolkata- 700091
Phone: 9830368162

Email: cs_sccl@shriram.com

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their sincere thanks to bankers, business associates, consultants, and
various Government Authorities for their continued support extended to your Companies activities during
the year under review. Your Directors also acknowledges gratefully the shareholders for their support and
confidence reposed on your Company.

For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.

Sd/- Sd/-

Akhilesh Kumar Singh M.R.Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman &Executive Director Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN: 00492377

Date: 10" May, 2023
Place: Chennai
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FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties
referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arms length
transactions under third proviso thereto

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

There were no contracts or arrangements or transactions entered into during the year ended March 31, 2023,
which were not at arm’s length basis.

2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

The details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis for the year ended March 31,
2023 are as follows:

Name of the Party | Nature of | Duration of | Salient Terms Amount (in lakhs)
Relationship Contract
Shriram Value Fellow subsidiary | 15/05/2019 to | Royalty Expenses | NIL
Services Ltd. Company 30/09/2024 (artistic work on | (As Loss declared
labels, letterhead, | for full Year)
commercial
literature, use of
Intellectual
Property)
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Continuing till date | DP Charges 0.03
Share Brokers Ltd. | Company
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Continuing till date | Reimbursement of 12.19
Share Brokers Ltd. | Company Expenses
Shriram Insight Subsidiary Continuing till date | Interest Payment 111.21
Share Brokers Ltd. | Company
Way2Wealth Subsidiary Continuing till date | Reimbursement of
Brokers Private Company Expenses 2.15
Limited
Way2Wealth Subsidiary Continuing till date | Reimbursement of 5.57
Commodities Company Expenses

Private Limited
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Way2Wealth Subsidiary Continuing till date | Interest Payment 107.33
Brokers Private Company

Limited

Shriram Transport | Fellow Subsidiary | 01.04.2022 to | Rent payment for 9.16
Finance Company | till November, now | 28.02.2023 the use of

Limited (Now its part of Shriram infrastructure

Shriram Finance Group.

Ltd)

Appropriate approvals have been taken from the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time for the related
party transactions as mentioned above.

3

» Amount paid as advances, if any: NIL
For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.

Sd/-
M.R.Shashibhushan
Managing Director
DIN: 00492377

Sd/-

Akhilesh Kumar Singh

Vice Chairman &Executive Director
DIN: 00421577

Date: 10" May, 2023
Place: Chennai
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DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER RULE 5 (2) OF THE

COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL)

RULES. 2014

Sr. PARTICULARS DETAILS
No.
1. Name of the Employee Akhilesh Kumar Singh

2. Designation of the Employee

Vice Chairman & Executive Director

3. | Nature of Employment, whether contractual
or otherwise

Contractual

4. Qualifications & Experience of the | Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh is a B.Tech from T
Employee (Kharagpur) and a PGDBM from IIM (Bangalore).
5. | Date of Commencement of the Employment | He was appointed as the Director of the Company on
5th November, 2007.
6. Age 60 years
7. Last employment He had been associated with Shriram Group since

1994, starting his career as President of Shriram City
Union Finance Ltd.

During his association with the Group, he has handled
responsibilities of Managing Directorship of Shriram
City Union Finance Ltd., Shriram Insight Share

Brokers Ltd. and Shriram Asset Management
Company Ltd.
8. The percentage of equity shares held by the | NIL
employee in the Company within the
meaning of clause (iii) of sub rule (2) of
Rule 5
9. Whether any such employee is a relative of | None

any Director or manager of the Company
and if so, name of such director or manager.
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DETAILS OF REMUNERATION RECEIVED DURING THE YEAR NEEDS TO BE GIVEN

13:)' Particulars of Remuneration for FY 2022-23 Amount in lakhs
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 130.03
Act, 1961
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) -
Income-tax Act, 1961
(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961 -
(e) Leave Encashment paid in FY 2022-23 -
2. Contribution to NPS 9.29
TOTAL 139.32
Notes:

1. No employee was employed for a part of the FY 2022-23 drawing remuneration of more than
rupees eight lakh and fifty thousand per month.

2. No employee drawing remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-
time Director or Manager and holding two percent of the equity shares of the Company by himself
or along with his spouse and dependent children was employed throughout the FY 2022-23 or part

thereof.
For and on behalf of the Board
SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.
Sd/- Sd/-
Akhilesh Kumar Singh M.R.Shashibhushan
Vice Chairman &Executive Director Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN: 00492377

Date: 10t May, 2023
Place: Chennai
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited

Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Shriram Credit
Company Limited (“the Company”) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31 , 2023,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of
Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flow for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid slandalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standard prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended (Ind AS) and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the statc of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2023 and its profit, total comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section143(10) of the Companies Act,2013. Qur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report, We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the andit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
the standalone financial statements.

Offices also at
Mumbai Chennai
Bengaluru Coimbatore Hydcrabafl
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3. Emphasis of Matter

We invite attention to Note no. 38 of the financial statements regarding scheme of
amalgamation between M/s. Shriram Credit Company Limited (“Transferce Company™) and
its wholly owned subsidiary company M/s. Shriram Financial Products Solution (Chennai)
Private Limited (“Transferor Company™), pursuant to provisions of Section 233 and other
applicable provisions was aproved by the Regional Director, Chennai, vide order dated April
18, 2023 with effect from January 1, 2023.

The amalgamation was accounted as a common control business combination in accordance
with the accounting prescribed under “Pooling of Interest Method™ as laid down in Appendix
C of Ind AS 103 (Business Combinations of entities under common control) and as per the
specific provisions of the scheme.

The financial statements of the Transferor company has been audited by other auditor, the
Report of which has been furnished to us by the Management, and our conclusion on the
statement, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the
Transferor Company, is based solely on the report of the other auditor and procedures
performed by us. :

4, Information Qther than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report
Thereon

The other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other
information.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

5. Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the
standalone Ind AS financial statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section134(5) of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the

s
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Company in accordance with Division III of Schedule III of the Act as applicable to Non-
banking Financial Companies as defined in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
(Amendment) Rules 2016 and the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind
AS financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
processes.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of standalone Ind AS financial statement

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
standalone Ind AS financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone Ind AS
{inancial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.
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7. Other Matters
Attention is drawn to:

a) Note No. 29: The entire stake of Shriram Capital in the Company (99.99% of Holding)
has been transferred to Shriram Investment Holdings Limited in November 2022:

b) Note No.5 regarding investment in Shriram Wealth Limited.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11} of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the matters specified in
paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(i) As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt
- with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31% March,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on 31% March, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal Financial Control over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure C”.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our informatior and according to the explanations given
to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position
in its standalone Ind AS financial statements.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iiiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

Membership No.: 056927

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBU5273

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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Annexure A

Responsibilities for Audit of Standalone Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks , and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve coliusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating

effectiveness of such controls,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosurcs made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
.accounting and , based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists refated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained upto the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeble user of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evalaute the effect of any identiifed
misstatements in the standalone financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

For K. S. Aiyar & Co.
hartered Accountants
irm Regn. No. 100186W

GHosh
artner
Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBU5273

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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Annexure - B

Referred to in Paragraph 8 under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company for the year
ended March 31, 2023

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the
Company and the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit,
we state that:

i.

ii.

iii.

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(a)
(b)

(a)

®

()

(d)

()

The Company has a program of verification of Property, Plant and Equipment so as to
cover all the assets in a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
There is no immovable property (other than property where the company is the lessee and
the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) held in the name of the
company and hence reporting under clause 3 (i)(c) of the Order 1s not applicable.

The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment during the year.
No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company
as at March 31, 2023 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions

- (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3(ii)}a) of
the Order is not applicable.

The company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of
current assets and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has provided guarantee in respect of facilities availed from Bank by its
subsidiaries. The balance outstanding as at 31* March, 2023 in respect of guarantee
given is Rs. 90 crores.

In our opinion, the investments made and the terms and conditions of the grant of
guarantees provided are prima facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

The schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and
repayments or receipts of principal amounts and interest have been regular as per

" stipulations.

In respect of loans granted by the Company, there is no amount overdue for more than
ninety days as at the balance sheet date.

No loan granted by the Company which has fallen due during the year, has been renewed
or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the
same parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable

on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment.
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V. The Company has not given any loan to Directors during the year nor is the Company an
investment company. Hence, Sec. 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to
the Company.

V. The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be deposits.
Hence reporting under clause 3 (v} of the Order is not applicable.

VL. The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
subsection (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried out
by the company. Hence reporting under clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable.

Vil. [n respect of statutory dues:

(a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and
Services Tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to
the appropriate authorities.

(b)Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited
as on March 31, 2023 on account of disputes are given below:

Nature of the Nature of dues Forum where Period to Amount
statute dispute is pending [ which the (Rs)
amount
relates
Income Tax Act, Income Tax Jurisdiction AY 2010-11 93,280
1961 Demand Assessing Officer
Income Tax Act, Income Tax 1ITAT AY 2014-15 | 1,03,78,860
1961 Demand
Income Tax Act, Income Tax CIT (Appeal) AY 2018-19 8.25,620
1961 Demand
Income Tax Act, Income Tax Jurisdiction AY 2020-21 7,67,190
1961 Demand Assessing Officer

Viii. There were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).
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iX. (a) The Company has not taken any loans er other borrowings from any lender. Hence
reporting under clause 3(ix)(a) of the Order is not applicable,
(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

{c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year and there are no outstanding
term loans at the beginning of the year and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the
Order is not applicable..

(d) The Company has not raised any funds and hence reporting under clause 3(ix)(d) of the
Order is not applicable.

(e) The Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet
the obligations of its subsidiaries.

(f) The Company has not raised any loans during the year and hence reporting under clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

X.  (a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of
the Order is not applicable.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally) during the year and hence reporting
under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

" (a). No fraud by the company or any fraud on the company has been noticed or reported
during the year.
(b) No report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 with the Central Government during the year and upto the date of this report.

{¢) The Company does not have a whistle blower policy and hence reporting under clause
3(xi)(c) of the Order is not applicabie.

Xii. The Company is not Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is
not applicable.

xiii. [n our opinion, the Company is in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act,
2013 with respect to applicable transactions with the related parties and the details of related
party transactions have becn disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

x1v. (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.
(b) We have considered the Internal Audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the

Company during the year, in determining the nature, timing and extent of our audit
procedures.
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XV.  In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected to its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.

xvi. (a) The Company is registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
(2 of 1934)

(b) The company has conducted Non-Banking Financial activities with a valid Certificate
of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of India
~ Act, 1934

(¢) The company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and hence reporting under clause 3{xvi)(c) of the
Order is not applicable.

(d) The Group has no CIC as part of the Group and hence reporting under clause 3(xvi}{(d) of
the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the immediately
preceding financial year.

xviil. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year.

XiX. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial
assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based
on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of
the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at
the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date.

xX. The conditions of Sec. 135(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable to the Company
and hence reporting under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants
“irm Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBU5273 \ '

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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Annexure — C

Referred to in Paragraph 8 (f) under the heading ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ of our report of even date to the members of the Company
for the year ended March 31, 2023

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Shriram Credit
Company Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s pelicies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
preseribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in
all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
slatements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

12
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles.

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements. We draw attention to paragraph 3 on Emphasis of Matter.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
pelicies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.
rtered Accountants
Regn. No. 100186W

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBU5273

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennal 660 017

CIN : US5993TN1980PLCO08215
Standalone Balance Shest as on 31st March 2023

Amount {in Rs. Lacs) | Amount (in Rs. Lacs)
Note As on As on
Particulars No. 3st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Auditad) {Audited)
1 [ASSETS
{1}  Flnancial Assets
{a) Cash and Cash Equivalents 2 339.21 7202
(b) Bank Balances other than (a} above 2 1,250.72 -
{c} Trade receivables 3 235.25 B
(d) Loans 4 1,333.74 2,282.32
(e} Investments 5 18.048.79 11.852.78
{f) Other Financial Assets & 243.33 21.00
21,451.04 14,228.13
{2 Non Financial Assets
(a) Current Tax Assets (Net) 7 441.64 137.04
(h) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 8 - 3828
(c) Property, Plant & Equipment 9 1,955.64 1.978.14
(d) Capital Work - in - Progress 7.08 7.08
(e} Other Non- Financial Assets 10 207.29 45.73
2,611.64 2,206.25
Total Assets _24,062.68 16,434.38
I [LIAEILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
{1)]  Financial Llakilities
{(a) Payables
{l) Trade Payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of creditars
other than micro enterprises and smalt
enterprises 11 399.23 1.09
{b) Bormowings 12 . 2,250.00 1,600.00
{¢} Subordinated Liability 18 2,400.00 2,400.00
(d) Other Financial Liabilities 13 159.88 8.75
5,208.11 4,009.85
(2)|  Non Financial Liabilities
{a)} Provisions 14 16.85 11.82
(b) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Nef) 15 1ar.08 -
{c} Other Non- Financial Liabilities 16 2(8.85 227.53
363.76 239.35
k| Equiry
(&) Equity Share Capital 17 2,406.31 2,406.31
by Other Equity 19 16.083.50 9,778.87
18,489.81 12,185.18
Total Llabilities & Equity 24,062.68 16,434.38
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date
For K.S.Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Fjap Regn No. 100186W

Akhllesh Kumnar $ingh

embership No. 050927
UDIN- 23050927BGYEBUS 273

Place : Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

e

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Credit Company Limited

M R Shashibhushan
Managing Director
DIN : 00492377

Trina Nandi

Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date: 10.05.2023




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017

CIN : U5993TN1880PLC008215

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31st March 2023

Amount (in Rs. Lacs} | Amount {in Rs. Lacs)
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars Note | 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited} {Audited)
Revenua From Operations
(i} InterestIncome 20 292.95 362.15
(i} Sale of services 21 5,010.20 -
(i) Net Gain on Fair value changes 22 107.78 (62.37)
4] Total Revenue from Operations 5,410.93 299.78
(I Other Income 23 149.94 191.01
{m Total Income {J+1) 5,560.88 491.70 |
Expenses
{i) Employee Benefits Expenses 24 1,950.17 206.03
(i} Depreciation, amortization and Impairment 9 B89.77 22.15
{ii} Finance Cost 25 218.54 158.43
{iv) Other Expenses 26 3,564.73 57.98
{v) Provisions and Write offs 27 {3.79) 38.26
{v) Total Expenses {IV) 5.799.41 482.85
V) Profit/{loss} before exceptional items and tax {I1-IV) (238.54) 8.85
v Exceptional items - -
{vin Profit/{loss} before tax (V-V} (238.54) - 8.85
vl Tax Expenses
{a)Current Tax - 9.03
{b} Deferred Tax 8 &15 26.89 (7.66)
{c) Earlier Year Tax 4.37 -
Total Tax Expenses 31.26 1.38
(x) ‘i:lrlt:)ﬁﬂ(i.oss) for the period from continuing operations (VI (269.80) 7.48
{X) | Other Comprehensive Income
{i) tems that will not be reclassified in Profit or Loss - 0.10 0.01
Remeasurement defined employee benefit plan . ’
{ii) Income: tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to
Profit & Loss (0.03) (0.00)
{X1) Total Comprehensive Income for the year {269.72} 7.48
(X Eaming per Equity Share (for Continuing operations}
(1) Basic (in Rs.) (1.12) 0.03|
{2) Diluted {in Rs.} {1.12) 0.03

The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

or K.5.Aiyar & Co.
artered Accountants

irtd Regn No. 100186W

Membership No. 050927
UDIN- 2305092 TBGYERU 5273

Place : Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Credit Company Limited

Ju

Akhilesh Kumar$ingh MR Shas ushan

Vice Chairm Managing Director

DIN: 004215 DIN ; 00492377
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date: 10.05.2023




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
CIN : UB5993TN1980PLCODE215
Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the Year ended 31st March 2023

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

As on As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
A.|CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before Tax (238.54) 8.85
Other Comprehensive Income 0.07 0.01
Provisions & Write offs (3.79) {28.20)
Profit on sale of current investments {107.75) {80.86)
Provision for gratuity {117.69) -
{Gain)/Loss on Right of Use Asset {17.53) -
Finance costs 9.96 -
Interest income on Bank Deposits and Debentures 10.28 -
Depreciation 69.77 2215
Unrealized Profit on MF (0.01) 62.37
Operating profit before change in working capital {395.23) (16.78)
Movements in Working Capital:
Decrease / (Increasé) in Loans 948.58 131.00
Decrease / (Increase) in Other curent assels {1,324 .68) 308.06
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables {691.94) 0.12
Increase / {Decrease) in Other cument liabilities 1,534.15 {71.28)
Increase / (Decrease) in Provisions 8.82 0.65
Increass / (Decrease) in other non current assets 31.81 -
Net cash from / (used in) operating activities 111.31 351.78
Direct taxes paid 162.57 9.15
Net Cash from / {used in) operating activities 273.87 i 360.92
BjCASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment in Subsidiaries - -
Net sale / Purchase of Investments {3,096.78) 84.13
Interest Received on NCD - -
Net sale / Purchase of Fixed Assets 6.53 (4.48)
Proceeds from sale/(purchase) of mutual funds (net) (0.60)] - -
Proceeds from Investment/ Closure of Bank Deposits 449.28 -
'Redemption of investment -RNCPS 1,600.00 -
Net Cash from / (uged in} in investing activities {1,041.58) 79.65
C|CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Unsecured borrowings (net} 650.00 {413.85)
RNCPS - -
Interest paid - -
Net Cash from / {used in) Financing activities 650.00 (413.85)
Total increasel/(decreasa) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (117.70) 26.72
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 456.91 45.30
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the period 339.21 72.02
D[Components of Cash and Gash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period
iy Cash on hand 0.66 1.00
iiiy Batances with scheduled banks in Current accounts 338.55 71.02
[~ [Total cash and cash equivalents {Note 2) 339.21 72.02

As per our report of even date
For K.8.Alyar & Co.
c

rtered Accountants
Regn No. 100186W

Membership No. 050927
UDIN- 23050927 BGY EBUB2T3

Place : Mumbat
Date: 10.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Shriram Credit Company Limited

¥

Akhilesh KumasBingh MR s
Vice Chairmgn Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DEN : 00492377
: i \v‘“‘ _q E m GL‘
Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Place : Chennai
Date: 10.05.2023
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

(1) Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Shriram Credit Company Limited ("the company") is a public limited company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a Non Deposit
Systemically Important company registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time).The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant
Accounting Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented,
unless otherwise stated. '

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilitics. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6-
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

3. Presentation of financial statement
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Schedule II format of the Companies Act,
2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets
and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis in the following circumstances:

i.  The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

iii. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties
Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements (e.g. International Swaps and
Derivative Association Arrangements) are presented net if all the above criteria are met.

4, Statement of compliance

These standalone or separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant
provisions of the Act.
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5. Significant accounting policies

5.1 Financial instruments

(i) Classification of financial instruments .

The Company classifies its financial assets inte the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets® cash flows and the

Company’s business model for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of

financial assets to achieve its business objective. .

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher

tevel of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking 'worst case’ or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not

~change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP]) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at
fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss such as derjuatiye liabilities. ity o
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(ii) Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables, investments and other
financial assets. '
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows,

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iif) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets. '

Theése debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. Impairment losses or
reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by the Company in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’
applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable
election has been made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at
FVOCl.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

« Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

» Jtems specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

» Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
with transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
they arise.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for
selling or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not
in a qualifying hedge relationship. '

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair
value.

Financial instruments designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset may only be designated at fair value through profit or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies (i.e. eliminates an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities on a
different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or:

» if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

« if financial assets and liabilities are both managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the movement in fair value
attributable to changes in the Company’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes
in credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other
comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial
instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(¥) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking info account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR),
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(vi) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair

value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company’s lability under

each guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially recognised less cumulative

amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

» The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life
of the guarantee.

(vii) Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financial assets or
liabilities in 2017-18 and until the year ended March 31, 2023.

(viii} Recognition and De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:

a) Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the funds are transferred to the customers’
account or delivery of assets by the dealer, whichever is earlier, ‘

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

¢) Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular
way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and

conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the

difference recognised as a de-recognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not

already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement

purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does

not result in de-recognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the

Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already

been recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

a) Financial assets:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financiat
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the

transfer qualifies for de-recognition.
The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:
i The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
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ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the 'eventual recipients’), when all of the following three
conditions are met:

I The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

ii. The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
~ eventual recipients
iit. The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients

without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients. '

A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:
i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
it The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to ell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has
retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(ix) Impairment of financial assets
Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective
basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has
grouped its loan portfolio into Loans, Secured loans against Shares and Property.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower
level. If a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past
due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below: '

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. '

Stage 2

All'exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase
in credit risk.

Stage 3

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as
credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets:

At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVQOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a} Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not
consider otherwise;

/ G
e
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Financial guarantee contracts

The Company’s liability under financial guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and the ECL
provision. For this purpose, the Company estimates ECLs by applying a credit conversion factor.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive.,

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure. at a future
default date.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral. It is usuaily expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

F. orward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments/
natural calamities occurring in the market it operates in. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any,
are embedded in the methodology to reflect such trends/events reasonably.

If an event warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL methodology, the Company may
make the same.

(x} Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any
subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss,
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(xi) Determination of fair value

On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy ot the end of the

reporting period during which the change has occurred.
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e.
on day one).

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair
value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised.

5.2Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured
at FVTPL.

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
' the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost {net of provision} of the financial asset.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised
a. When the right to receive the payment is established,
b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity
and
¢. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably
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(iif) Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
In cases where the increase is in line with expected general inflation Rental Income is recognised as
per the contractual terms.

Operating leases are leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risk and
benefits of ownership of the asset.

(iv) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless
included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract{s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation

(v) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or
loss , held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In
cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes
under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

However, net gain / loss on de-recognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL presented separately
under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

5.3 Expenses
(i) Finance costs
Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the co nding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.
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Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial
liability.

(ii} Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid
annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits

a} Defined contribution schemes

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund Scheme,
defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a
stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and
recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability
aftet deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

b} Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The
plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation
from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under ‘The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972°. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based
on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation,

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan
assets above or.bhelow the discount rate is recognized as part of re- measurement of net deﬁned hablhty
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assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each.reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees - Shriram Credit Company
Ltd Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme. Trustees administer contributions made to the
trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with Life Insurance Corporation of India
, the IRDA approved Insurance Company.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit lability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other long-term emplayee benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of
valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes
in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance
Sheet.

(iii) Rent Expense:

Identification of Lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Recognition of lease payments:

Rent Expenses representing operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected
general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms.

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating leases.

{iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they accrue,

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the

carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
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In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life,

(vi) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries
where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realised simultaneously.

14
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT}

Minimum altemate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect
of Minimum ARernative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company
reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period.

Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

il. When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

5.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial recognition.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion;

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-
end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.
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5.5Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and
balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather
than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

5.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on Written Down Value (WDYV) at the rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except Leasehold Land which is amortized over the period of lease agreement
on straight line basis. Additions during the year are being depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date
on which the asset was put to use. Similarly where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or
destroyed, the depreciation on such asset is calculated on a pro-rata basis upto the date on which such
asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

5.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets being Computer Software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. Intangible assets are carried at cost less amortization and impairment losses. It is amortized on
straight line basis over the estimated useful life which is presumed to be five years at present.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible
assets recognised as of 1 April, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.

5.8 Investment Property

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to Ind AS, the company has
elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment property as per Indian GAAP less
accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment (if any) as on the transition date of April 1,
2017
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Investment properties (other than land) are depreciated using WDV method over their estimated
useful lives. Investment properties generally have a useful life of 60 years. The useful life has been
determined based on technical evaluation by management.

On transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
investment properties recognised as at 1st April 2017, measured as per previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

5.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of
provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific
to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement. ‘

5.10 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

5.11 Earning Per Share

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
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6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
in future periods. .

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

6.1 Business Model Assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been
a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

6.2 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

6.3 Fair value measurement:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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6.4 Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of-a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

6.5 Contingent liabilities and provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents, Significant judgement is required to conclude on these
estimates.

6.6 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Coempany’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of leans
given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

6.7 Other estimates:
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.
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NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
2 Cash and Cash Equivalents {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
AS on AS On
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Cash and cash equivalents
i. Cash on Hand 0.66 1.00
lii. Batance with Scheduled banks in current account(s} 338.55 71.02
Total 339.21 72.02
Other Bank Balances
(i} In deposit accounts - With remaining maturity more than 3 1,250.72 -
months but less than 12 months
1,589.93 72.62
6 Other Financial Assets
AS on AS on
Particulars Hst March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
[Other Receivabie 6,39 21.00
Security Deposits 465 -
Prepaid Deposit -GST 2.54 -
Advances to Employees 2.64 -
Advances recoverable in Cash or Kind 150.00 -
Advances for expenes 55.95 -
Interest Accrued on bank deposits 21.16 -
243.33 21.00
7 Curmrent tax assets {Net)
A5 on AS on
Particulars J1st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Advance Income Tax (Net of Provisions) 441,64 137.04
441.64 137.04
8 Deferred Tax Assats (Net)
Fat-Bals] ot e
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Opening balance - 30.60
Add: Asset recognized during the period - 7.66
ICIosing balance - 38.26
10 Other Non Financial Assets
. Ason As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Gratuity Fund (Net of Provisions) 192.65 -
Others 14,64 45.73
- 207.29 45,73
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Borrowings {Amount in Rs. Lacs)
Particulars As on As on
31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Loan From SISBL 850.00 1,600.00
Loan From W2WBPL 1.400.00 -
2.250.00 1,600.00
Other Financial Liabilities
. As on As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
. {Audited) {Audited}
TDS Payable 0.05 4.33
Interest Payable 98.17 -
Other Statutory Liability 56.83 0.57
Liabilty for Expenses 4.84 3.85
159.88 8.75
Provisions
] As on " As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Provision on Standard asset 5.33 9.12
Provision for Gratuity 3.16 1.70
Provision for Leave Encashment B.37 1.00
16.85 11.82
Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net)
R As on As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{(Audited) {Audited)
Opening balance 110.17 -
Add: Asset recognized during the period 26.89 -
Closing balance $37.06 -
Other non financial Liabilities
. As on As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Other payables 209.85 227.53
20985 227.53




;.I\f...WW

1{//
‘%
i
»c.\\
¥ - %.66°66 658'19'0p'T (Auedwod BuipioH) peyitur] sBUipiOH JusuSeA| WRIMYS
%6666 698'19'0b'2 - - paywr eyded weauys
BUID|OH J0 %, S8IEyg JO 'ON BUIPIOH IO %, | S®IBYS J0 ON
TPHPIY] T _
Z20Z UMW ISLE £20Z UMEW ISLE 48p|oy3leys jo sweN
uo sy uo sy
. :Auedwos ey) ul seieys ejeBalbbE o) 40 %5 eyl arow Guipjoy sieploysseys o sj1laq
- - %6666 B58'L9'0F'Z pajw sBulpioH JUsWISBAU| WelIyS
%6666 |689°19'0%'2 - - peywir eyded wenys
BuIp|oH 0 % S8ieys Jo 'oN BuipioHjo % | seseys yo-oN
(pe1IpPNY) {(panpny) 13pIoYBIRYS JO JWEN
ZZOZ UMEW IS|LE £20Z Yoaew Is1e
uo sy uo sy

Auedo? Buipjoy eyewnn

|ows Jo Auedwos Buipjoy jo sajelzosse Jo Keypisqns Aq play sateys Bupnisul Auedwos Buip|oy ejewnin sj| Jo Auedwos Buipjoy Aq pjay saleys jo spejag
LE9Or'Z BZL'E90F'T L£'80¢'T 6TL'E'0r'Z tesh au} Jo pus ay) Je se asuejeg|
- - - - 2SBRIOS(]/ESeAIY|
LE00F'T 621't9'0P'2 \ereor'e 62L'C0'0F'Z JesA eyy jo Buuuibeq ayy je se souejeq
(sd) unowy (sy)unowy
seJeys 30 'oN SeJBUS JO "ON
(paypny) {psypny) suB|Naed
ZZO0T YMeW 151 €202 Yyaey Isic
uo sy uo sy

'SI9p|QY 3JeYS BU) A psy seJeys AJinbe Jo Jaquinu 3Y) ) Loodoid Ul 8q W LONNGUISIP 341 “SIUNOLLE
[enuaigyad ||e yo uonnausip Joye ‘Aurdiued Byl o s1esse BuluBLIA) aA1803) 0] PajiRUS Bq [|IM SaIBUS Anba 40 siepioy ey ‘Aurdwos auy 30 uonepinby jo Jusae sy ull

"aJeys Jad 2joa sUO 0} pejuS $1 $2.BYS AINbs Jo Japjoy yoe] eleys Jad gL sy Jo enea Jed e Bujaey sareys Ainba jo ssed suo Auo sey Auedwon ayy
sJep|oyY aJeys o) paysreqie syybysuua)

[E3[ded aieys Ajinba pue Sa1eys Ajjnba Jo JeqUny Jo UORE|||oU0Iey

. comimd s R (588 -jj| "5y Jo areys Arb3|
LE90F'2 6ZH'ES'OF'E LE90P'Z 6TL'COOV'Z :jedea dn pied pue paguosqns ‘penss;
00°008'Z 000°00°08'7 00°00L'Z 000'00°04°2
000052 00000052 00°C0LZ 000000.2 yoee -/ 9y Jo saleys Ainbs

Jlejides aseys Aynb3 pesuoyiny
sy Saieys Jo "oN g Y] seleys jo "oN
{peupny) . (peypny) signonIeg
2T0Z YIel 151E £20Z Yoe ISLE
uo sy uo sy

{o

{9

(e

{5087 "sy Uj JUnowy)

QILINM ANYdWOD LId3HD WYHIHHS

1Endes Ieys Annb3

Ll



- - %0000 . 000'00'0F'2 {Auedwos BuiploH) papwy sBuip|oH JuawWIsaAL| wenys
%004 000°00°0F'2 - - poywI je)ded) weiys
BUIP|OH 30 % SaIeyg Jo 'ON BUIPIOH JO % | SodelsJo ‘ON
(paupny) {(panpny)
BPoYaIBYS JO SWIE
2202 U21EW 51E £20Z UJEN I5LE 1BPIHAIZYS 40 BLEN
uo sy uo sy
TAueduwios 94 U] seJeys o)ebalObe s} JO %5 UeL]] aIcLlu BUlpjoy Siapjoyaleys Jo s|ieag
. _ %00°00L 000'00°05'2 paywi] sBuiploH JUSUNSaAL| WeIIYS
%001 000'00'0F'Z - - peywrT [BndeD weiyg
BUIPIOH O % $seyg JO ‘ON Buipjoy o % | seseyg jo "oN
{paypry) {panpny)
: lep|oyeseys Jo awe
ZZ0T UMBN IS [E £Z0Z Uydiew 1sie PlousieLs § N
uo sy uo sy
Auedwiod Blipjoy ejewnmn
ay} 40 Auedwos Buipjoy Jo sejedosse Jo Ampisqns Aq play seseys Buipnjou) Auedwos Buipjoy ejeunyn s Jo Auedwod Buipjoy Ag piey seseys jo sjieleq

{2

(g

00°00¢'2 000°00°0¥'2 00°00v°Z 000°00'0+'2 Jeah 3y} Jo pue aUj Je se eauejeg
00 00¥'Z ooo'oo’or'e - - esealos()/asealsu|
- - 00'00F'e 00g'00'or'Z Jesh ay) jo Buuwbeq sy) je se aoueeyg
(S Junowy seJeyg Jo 'oN {S¥) Junowy Saleyg Jo "oON
PalpnY] ~ (PaNpny) Siemome
7207 U2IeW IS1e £207 Y218 181E MIpIEd
uo sy uo sy
BOJELS BouUSJajalg Jo Joquinu JO LOREIouooay|{e
) . ot ) . i yJee -jgl "sy 1O aleys aoualajeld
Qo'oor g 000'00'0P'Z 0000k 2 pooooore :rendes dn pred pue paquosqns ‘penss|
00'005' 000°00°05° 00'005°T D00"00'05'Z
i Lo it [y {sigak
000092 00000 0s T 000052 00000052 oL 0._3_._0.5 salgys suUalajald QqEWEapsy SAlBINWILLING 9|QIUSALIDD - UON %5°9]
S8lPl g adusajald PRsSLIOYINY
SH SalByS JO "ON - seleys Jo 'ON
{peypny) {penpnv) SR
ZT0Z YN 15) ¢ £20Z HYIIRN ISLE
uo sy uo sy

Anqger pejeuipiegng

8l




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

19 Other Equity

{Amount in Rs, Lacs}

As on As on
Particulars 31st March 2023 J1st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)

A. (i)Capital Reserve 25.00 25.00
{i)Capital Reserve on Merger $0.00 -

115.00 25.00

|B. Statutory Reserve - at the beginning 957.48 955.99

Add; Transfer during the period - 1.50

Statutory Reserve - at the end 957.48 957.48

C. Securities Premium Reserve - at the beginning 7,336.53 7.336.53
Add: Raceipts during the period - -

Securities Premium Reserve - at the end 7,336.53 7,336.53

D. General Reserve 116.27 15.27

E. Surplus - At the beginning 747092 1,438.60
la. IND AS Adjustment - -
(i) Increase/(decrease} in value of Mutual Funds/NCD - -
(ii) Increase/(decrease} in value of Investment held in SWAL - -
(iil) Recognition of change in Deferred Tax Assetf{Liability) - -
[b. Non adjustable old service tax input credit - -

c. Profit after tax transferred from Statement of Profit and Loss (269.72) 7.48

d. Appropriations

i, Transfer to Statutory Reserve _ (1.50)
ii. Dividend Paid - _

Surplus - Balance at the end of the period 7,201.20 1,444.59

F. Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plans

Opening balance 363.02 .
Add: Additions during the year - -
Less: utilised during the year _
Closing Balance 363.02 -

|G. Total Resarves and Surplus (A+B+C+D+E+F)} 18,083.50 9,778.87
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS

21 Sale of Services

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particutars J1st March 2023 J1st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Sale of Services 5,010.20 -
Total 5,010.20 -

22 Net Gain on Fair value changes

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Net Gain/{Loss) on financial instrument at Fair Value through 107.78 (62.37)
profit & loss
Total 107.78 (62,37}
23 Qther Income
For the year ended For the year ended
Particutars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
interest on Income Tax Refund 26.26 : -
infra Support Services - 110.00
Profit on sale of Investments {net) 6.03 80.86
Recovery from Drs. Previously written off as bad 29.40 046
Misc Income 20.22 060
Liability no longer required 0.85 -
Profit on sale of Mutual Fund 0.69 -
Interest income On Bank Deposits 65.47 -
Rental Income 0.91 -
Total 149.94 191.91
24 Employee Benefits Expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 3 st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Salary & Wages 1,945 41 205.84
Contribution to Provident and other funds 110.12 0.72
Provision for Gratuity (116.17) {0.92)
Liabilty for Leave Encashment 7.37 0.39
Staff welfare expenses 343
Total 1,850.17 206.03
25 Finance Cost
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Interest On Loan From SISBL 111.21 158.43
Interest On Loan From W2WBPL 107.33 -
Total 218.54 158.43
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO ACCOUNTS
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Payment to Auditor
Statutory Audit Fees 9.71 4.52
Tax Audit Fees 0.80 0.74
Reimbursement of Expenses 0.09 0.03
Total Payment to Auditor 10.60 5.28
Legal Fees 510 3.77
Professional charges 119.63 28.61
Rental charges 150.36 -
Lease Rent 4.88 4.88
Directors Sitting Fees 6.20 4.90
Travelling Expenses 60.95 1.05
Meeting Expenses 0.49 0.02
Processing Fee - 0.03
Royalty charges 2.48 0.89
Repairs and maintenance 8.13 -
Communication expenses 65.61 -
Performance incentive to agents 1,089.92 -
Referral commission to agents 304.78 -
Commissicn on deposits and debentures 1,475.85 -
Hire charges 0.05 -
Business promotion 230.35 -
Advertisement expenses 3.12 -
Interest on .ease Liability of Right of Use Asset 9.96 -
Loss on sale of Asset 7.22 -
Other expenses 29.07 8.56
3,564.73 57.98
Provisions and write offs
For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
(Audited) {Audited)
Provision for Standard assets {3.79} {0.13)
Provision for NPA - (29.16)
Bad Debts written off - 67.55
Total (3.79) 38.26
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD.

29. Related Parties for the period 31" March, 2023(Transferee Company)

List of Related parties Relationship
Shriram Ownership Trust . . . .
Shriwell Trust Enterprises having Significant influence

Shriram Capital Private Limited (Formerly known as
Shriram Financial Ventures (Chennai) Private Limited)

Ultimate holding company

Shriram Investment Holdings Limited”

Holding Company

Shriram Asset Management Company Limited

Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Private
Limited '

Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited

Subsidiaries
Shriram Insight Share Brokers Limited
Shriram Wealth Limited
SEA Funds Management India Private Limited
Way2 Wealth Securities Private Limited
Way2Wealth Brokers Private Limited Step-down Subsidiaries

Way2Wealth Commodities Private Limited

Shriram Overseas Investments Private Limited

Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited

Shriram Asset Reconstruction Private Limited

Shriram Value Services Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

Novac Technology FZCO w.e.f 8th Feb 2023

Novac Digital Services Private Limited

Novag Technology Solutions Private Limited

Subsidiaries of Shriram Value Services

Armour Insurance Services WLL, Bahrain

Bharath Investments Pte. Ltd., Singapore

Subsidiaries of Shriram Overseas Investments
Private Limited

Shriram LI Holdings Private Limited

Shriram GI Holdings Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries of Shriram Investment
Holdings Limited

Shriram Life Insurance Company Ltd.

Subsidiary of Shriram LI Holdings Private
Limited

Shriram General Insurance Company Lid.

SGI Philippines General Insurance Co. Inc.

Subsidiaries of Shriram GI Holdings Private
Limited

Shriram Finance Ltd. ~

Associate of Shriram Capital Private Limited

Shriram Housing Finance Ltd.

Subsidiary of Shriram Finance Ltd,

Mr. Akhilesh Kumar Singh

Vice-Chairman & Executive Director

Mr. M.R.8hashibhushan

Managing Director

Mr. Adbhut Shankar Pathak”™

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Trina Nandi

Company Secretary

“Notes:

a. In November 2022, Shriram Group's entities- Shriram Transport Finance Company Ltd., Shriram City
Union Finance Ltd. and Shriram Capital Ltd. merged to form Shriram Finance Ltd.

b. As a result of the above merger, the entire stake of Shriram Capital Ltd. in the Company has been

transferred to Shriram Investment Holdings Ltd,

¢. Mr. Adbhut Shankar Pathak has been re-designated as the Assistant General Manager (Finance) w.e.f
10" November, 2022; hence he no longer holds the post of Whole-time Key Managerial Personnel.

d. Shriram Financial Products Solutions (Chennai) Pvt. Ltd. has been merged with Shriram Credit

Company Ltd. vide Order of Amalgamation dated 18™ April, 2023,




29 Notes forming part of financial statements for the Period ended 31-03-2023
Related Parly Transactlons Disclosure: (Transferor Company)

List of Related parties

Relatlonship

Shriram Ownership Trust

Shriwell Trust

Enterprises having Significant influence

[Financial Ventures (Chennai) Private Limited}

Shriram Capital Private Limited {Formerly known as Shriram

Uitimate helding company

Shriram Investment Holdings Limited*

Holding Company of Shriram Credit Company Lid.

Shriram Credit Company Limited

Helding Company

Shriram Asset Management Company Limited

Shrirarn Insight Share Brokers Ltd.

[Shriram Fortune Solutions Limited

Shriram Wealth Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries

SEA Funds Management India Private Limited

VWay2Wealth Securities Private Limited

Way2Weaith Brokers Private Limited

Way2Wealth Commadities Private Limited

Step-down Subsidiaries of holding company

Shriram Overseas Investments Private Limited

Way2Wealth Insurance Brokers Private Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries of Shriram Investment Holdings

Shriram Asset Reconstruction Private Limited

Limited

Shriram Value Services Limited

Novac Digital Services Private Limited

Novac Technelogy Solutions Private Limited

Subsidiaries of Shriram Value Services

Armour Insurance Services WLL, Bahrain

Subsidiaries of Shriram Overseas Investments Privale

Shriram Gl Holdings Private Limited

Bharath Invesiments Pie. Ltd., Singapore Limited
Shriram LI Holdings Privale Limited Fellow Subsidiaries of Shriram Investment Holdings
Limited

Shriram Life Insurance Company Lid.

Subsidiary of Shriram LI Holdings Private Limited

Shriram General Insurance Company Ltd.

SGI Philippines General Insurance Co. Inc.

Subsidiaries of Shriram Gl Holdings Private Limited

Shriram Finance kid, *

Associate of Shriram Capital Private Limited

Shriram Automall India Ltd.

Subsidiaries of Shriram Finance Ltd.

Shriram Housing Finance Ltd.

Mr. Karanam Ramachandra Sekhar*

Whole-time Director

*Notes:

a. In Novernber 2022, Shriram Group's entities- Shriram Transport Finance Company Ltd., Shriram City Union
Finance Ltd. and Shriram Capital Ltd. merged to form Shriram Finance Ltd.

b. As a result of the above merger, the entire stake of Shriram Capital Ltd. in Shriram Credit Company Ltd. had been

transferred to Shriram Investment Holdings Ltd.

¢. Mr. Karanam Ramachandra Sekhar has stepped from the position of Whole-time director of the Company w.e.f 15t

November, 2022,

Related Party Transaction

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

. . Yearended | Year ended
Particulars of Transaction Transactions with 31.01.2023 31-03-2022
Employee Benefits (Group Term Insurance) Shriram Life Insurance Co., Ltd 0.80 11.30
Employee Benefits (Group Personal Accident Insurance) Shriram General Insurance Company Limited 0.64 4.06
Sale of Services Shriram Transport Finance Compay Limited 583.14 1,307.56
Sale of Services Shriram City Union Finance Limited 1,922.98 2,874.97
Sale of Sarvices Shriram Housing Finance Limited 1,003.41 428.39
Sale of Services Shriram Finance Limited 906.60 -
Royalty Shriram Value Services Limited 2.46 10.01
Technical Fees Paid & Pay Roll Processing Novac Technology Solutions Private Limited 15.38 12.00
Remuneration EIWMr K R C Sekar 58.15 55.00
Investrment in Mutual fund Shriram Credit Company Limited - 135.86
Investment in RNCPS Shriram Asset Management Company Limited - 100.00
Redemption of RNCPS Shriram Asset Management Company Limited 1,600.00 -
Balances at the Period ended
Yearended | Year ended
Related Party Nature 31-03-2023 | 31-03-2022

Shriram Transport Finance Compay Limited Receivable - 203.62
Shriram Value Services Limited Payable 2.21 10.01
Shriram Asset Management Company Limited Receivable - 1.600.00
Shriram City Union Finance Limited Recegivable - 212.08
Shriram Housing Finance Limitad Receivable - 3.28
Shriram Finance Limited 1% .57 5440\ Receivable
*Note ey, %,

1. The transactions s




SHRIRAM CRED!T COMPANY LIMITED

30 Contingent Liabilities not provided for

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 3Mst March 2023 31st March 2022
{Audited) {Audited)
Income Tax Demand - AY 2010-11 0.93 0.93
Income Tax Demand - AY 2012-13 - 0.54
Income Tax Demand - AY 2014-15 103.79 245.83
Income Tax Demand - AY 201516 - 45.59
Income Tax Demand - AY 2017-18 - 31.89
Income Tax Demand - AY 2018-1% 8.26 -
Income Tax Demand - AY 2020-21 .67 -

SISBL has availed of the following facilities from HDFC Bank wherein its Ho

iding Company i.e Shriram Credit Company Limited has

Iprovided "Letter of Comfort”™ to bank.
Nature Of Facility

Amount Sanctionad {Rs)

Amount Utilised {(Rs)

(i) Debtors Funding

Book debts: Primary security 50% of receivable upto 7 days.

Current Assets: Exclusive charge on Current Assets.

Letter of comfort: Comfort letter given by Helding Company.

Equity Shares: Securad by pledging of ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund worth
Rs. §00.08 Lakhs

1,500.00

(iii) Bank Guarantee to NSE/BSE
Partly secured by FD of Rs.1280 lakhs, 2,26,100 units of ICICI Prudential
Liquid Fund and partly by Comfort letter given by Holding Company.

3,500.00

3,500.00

(iv) Bank Guarantee
Fully secured by FD.

1¢.00

provided "Letter of Comfort” to bank:

[Way 2 Wealth Borkers (F) L3, has availed the following facility from Axis bank Lid, wherein Shrram Credi

t Company Ltd. has

Nature Of Facility

Amount Sanctioned (Rs)

Amount Utilised {Rs)

Bank Guarantee

5.50:0.00

5,500.00

31 Segment Reporting

Based on the guiding principle given in Accounting Standards on "Segment Reporting" (AS 17) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Aceountants of India, the company operates in single business and geographical segment. Mence the disclosure requirements of AS

17 in this regard is not applicable.

32 Recongciliation of Basic and Diluted shares used In computing eamnings per share {As per AS 20)

outstanding

For the year ended For the year ended
31ist March 2023 31st March 2022
Particulars {Audited) (Audited)
No. of shares considered as basic weighted average shares outstanding 240.63 24063
Add: Effect of dilutive issues of shares - -
No. - : y -
0. of shares considered as basic weighted average and potential shares 240.63 240.63




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

33 As on 31/03/2023 & 31/03/2022, there were no outstanding dues to MSME units,

34 Leasehold land is amortized over the period of lease agreement.

35 The company has classified its loan portfolic into Standard and NPA based on varicus RBI guidelines issued in this regard including

the possible impact of COVID 18 pandemic an its borrowers.

36 The remuneration of the Managing Director as recommended by Nomination and Remuneration Committee & approved by the Board

in its meeting held on 20th Day of Jan 2021 is being fully paid from Way2Wealth Securities Pvt Ltd a wholly owned subsidiary of the

company as he is also rendering services to the said subsidiary, considering the current financials of the Company.

37 During the year ended 31st March 2023, the company has subscribed 50 crores compulsorily convertible preference shares (CCPs)

38

of Re. 1/- each of Shriram Asset Management Company Ltd. Company's share of Stamp Duty paid towards Subscription of aforesaid
Investment has been capitalised. :

The Board at its Meeting held on February 10, 2023 had approved the proposat of scheme of amaltgamation between Mfs. Shriram
Credit Company Limited (“Transferee Company”) and its wholly owned subsidiary cormpany/s. Shriram Financial Products Solution
(Chennai) Private Limited (“Transferor Company™), pursuant to pravisions of Section 233 and other applicable provisions, if any of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Further, on satisfaction of all the conditions as specified in the Scheme, The Regional Director, Chennai, vide order dated April 18,
2023 has approved the Scheme under Section 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 with effect from January 1, 2023 {Appointed Date),
The amalgamation was accounted as a common control business combination in accordance with the accounting prescribed under
“Pooling of Interest Method” as laid down in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 {Business Combinations of entities under common control) and
as per the specific provisions of the scheme. Accordingly, the scheme has been given effect to in these financiat statements and all
assets, liabilities and reserves and income and expenditure of the Transferor Company stand transferred to and vested in the
Transferee Company subject to value of investments held by the transferee company in the transferor company and inter-company
balances between the transferee company and the transferor company appearing in the books stand cancelled pursuant to
amalgamation.

38 The figures for the year ended 31st March, 2023 represent the figures of the Amalgarated Company (“transferor as well as the

transferee company™). The figures for the year ended 31st March, 2022 representing the figures of the Transferee Company only
(SCCL) have been regrouped / rearanged wherever necessary conforming to current year's classificatian, :

.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
For K.S.Aiyar & Co. Shriram Credit Company Limited
Chartered Accountants

Finty Regn No. 1001856W .

M R ShashlbRiishan

Managing Director
DIN: 00421577 DIN : 00492377
Membership No. 050927
UDIN- 230509278GY ERUS2T73
] l\‘ ; '

j'\u«q dhclq

Trina Nandi

Company Secretary

Place : Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

Place : Chennai
Date: 10.05.2023
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Shriram Credit Company Limited
Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as an expense for the

{Amount in Rs. Lacs)

ear is as under.

For the year For the year
Particul ended “ended
artoulars 31st March 2023 | 31st March 2022
. ([Auditad) {Audited)
Employer's Coniribution to Provident Fund (includes pension fund) +10.12 0.72

by Defined benefit plans
The Company has funded the gratuity fiability ascertained on actuarial basis, wherein every employee who has completed five years or more of service is

entitied to gratuity on retirement or resignation or death calculated at 15 days salary for each completed year of service, without any ceiling fimit. The
vesting period for Gratuity as payable under The Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years.

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuaral risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calcufated using a discount rate determined by reference to govemnment bond
yields; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interest risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by an increase in the return on the
plan's debt investments.

Longevity risk: The present value of the defined benafit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both
during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase
in the satary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

There are no other post-retirement benefits provided to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March 2023. The

present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured usmg the projected unit credit
method.

Gratuity (Funded) {Amount in Rs. Lacs)

Particulars 31/03/2023 3103/2022

Liability recognized in the Balance Sheet

Present value of defined benefit obligation

COpening Balance 1.70 1.44

Current Service Cost 1.42 0.15

Interest Cost 0.12 0.19

Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on obligation {0.10) 0.01

Closing Balance 315 1.70

Expenses during the year

Cumrent Service cost 1.42 0.15

Interest cost 0.12 0.10
. 1.55 0.25

Component of defined benefit cost racognized in statement of Profit &

Loss

Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability

- Actuarial Logs/{Gain) on defined benefit obligation {0.10) 0.01

- Actuazial Loss/A{Gainy on Plan Assets - -

Component of defined benefit cost recogmzed in other {0.10) 0.01

comprehensive income

| Total 1.45 0.26}




Princlpal actuarial assumptions

Particutars 30372023 31/03/2022 i
| Discount Rate 7.49% 7.33%
Expected rate(s) of salary increase 5.00% 5.00%
E. return on plan assets NA NA
Aftrition rate 2.00% 2.00%
Mortality rate during employment Indian Assured Indian Assured
Lives Mortality Lives Mortality
2012-14 (Urb) 2012-14 (Urb)

Sensitivity Analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the detemination of the defined benefit cbligation ars discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurming at the end of tha

reparting petiod, while holding ali other assumptions constant.

Particulars Impact on Deflned benefit
311032023 31/03/2022
Discount rate - 1% Increase (0.42) (0.23)
Discount rate - 1% Decrease 0.50 0.28
Future salary growth - 1% Increase 0.51 0.28
Future salary growth - 1% Decrease (0.43) {0.24)
| Attrition rate - 1% Increase 0.05 0.07
Attrition sate - 1% Decrease (0.07} {0.08)

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actuat change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in
assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be comelated.

The average expected remaining lifetime of the plan members is 6 years as at the valuation date which seprasents the weighted average of the expected
remaining lifetime of all ptan participants.

The Company had deployed its invesiment assets in an insurance plan which is invested in market linked bonds. The invesfment retums of the market-
linked pfan are sensitive to the changes in interest rates as compared with the investment retumns from the smoath retum investment plan. The liabilities'
duration is not matched with the assets' duration.

The liabilities of the fund are funded by assets. The company aims to maintain a close 1o fufl-funding position at each Balance Sheet date. Future expected

contributions are disclosed based on this principle.

¢} Other long-term employee benefits,

Provision for long term compensated absences are measured by actuarial valuation in accordance with Ind AS-19




Shriram Credit Company Limited

INCOME TAXES "
indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed to tax on taxabile profits determined for each fiscal year
beginning on April 1 and ending on March 31

Statutory income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principles in dia adjusted in accordance with
the provisions of the {indian) Income tax Act, 1951. Such adjustments generally relate to depreciation of fixed assets, disaitowances of certain provisions
and accruals, deduction for tax holidays, the set-off of tax losses and depreciation carried forward and retirement benefit costs. Statutory income tax is
charged at 25% plus a surcharge and education cess, '

Incoime tax expanses

Particulars For the year ended
31/03/2023 31/83/2022

Current tax:

Cuient tax - 9.03

Tax pertaining to earlier years 4.37 -

Deferred tax 26.89 {7.66)

Total ) 31.26 1.38

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at the statutory income tax rate to income tax expense recognised for the

year is indicated below:

Particulars For the year ended
310312023 31/03/2022
Profit befora tax {238.54) 8.85
Expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate - 1497
Taxim on nt of
Depreciation under Income-tax Act ; (0.30)
Pravision against ioans & advances R {6.52)
Deductions ailowable under tax laws - 13.88
Others 31.26 (7.66}
Total 31.26 1.38
Tax expenses as per statement of profit and loss excluding earlier year - 8.03
tax, if any
Deferred Tax Provision 26.89 (7.66}
Current Tax Assets
Particulars As at As at
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Current tax Assets {Net) 441,64 137.04

Deferred Tax Liabilities

The majority of the deferred tix balance represents differential rates of depreciation for property plant and equipment under income tax act and disallowance of
certain expenditure under Income tax act. Significant components of defarred tax assetsf{liabilities) recognized in the financial statements arg as follows:

Particulars As at As at
3103-2023 31-03-2022

Deferred Tax Asset:

On account of depracigtion 82.23 77.80
Others . {28.89) {20.11)
Deferred Tax Liability:

Mutual fund and other invesiments {190.41) (10.42)
Deferred Tax Assst/ [Liabilitles) (Net) {137.06) 38.26




Shriram Credit Company Limited
Financial Instruments i

A. Capital risk management

The primary objectives of the Company’s capital managemant policy are to ensure that the Company compiies with extemally imposed capital requirements
and healthy capital ratios in order to suppont its business and to maximise shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments fo it according to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. No changes have been made to the objectives,
policies and processes from the previous years. However, they are under constant review by the Board. There are no long term or short term borrowings,
Accordingly, the capital fuly funded by equity and there is no debt. .

B. Categories of financial instruments

. 31/0312023 31/03{2022
Particulars Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Financial assets

Measured at amortised cost

Loans : 1,333.74 1,333.74 - 2,282.32 2,282.32
Other financial assets 478.58 478.58 21.00 21.00
Investiments . 17 973.23 17.973.23 11,780.05 11,780.05
Cash and cash equivalents 1,589.93 1,589.93 72.02 7202
Total financial assets at amortised cost (A) 21,375.48 21,375.48 14,155.40 14,155.40

Measured at fair value through other - - - R
comprehensive income {B}

Measurad at falr value through profit and loss {(C) 75.56 75.56 72.73 72.73
Total financlal assets {A+B+C) 21,451.04 21,451.04 14,228.13 14.228.13

Financial liabilities
Maasured at amortised cost - -
Trade payables 399.23. 399.23 1.00 1.09

Borrawings 2250.00 2,250.00 1,600.00 1,600.00
Other Financial Liabilities 159.88 159.88 - B75 8.75
Total financlal llabllities carried at amortised cost 2,809.11 2,809.11 1,609.85 1,609.85

C. Financial risk management

The Company has an Audit Committee established by its Board of Directors for overseeing the Risk Management Framework and developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The risk management policies are astablished to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks,
setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and
transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflact changes in the market conditions and the Company's activities to
provida reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adeguacy of the risk management framework in relation 1o the risk faced by
the Company.

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:

- Market risk

- Credit rigk; and

- Liquidity risk

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices. The Company
is exposed in the ordinary course of its business to risks related to changes in foreign currency exchange rates, commodity prices and interest rates.

., Credit risk management:
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractua) obligations resulling in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk encompasses
of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness as well as concentration rigks.

Company's credit risk arises principally from Investments, loans and trade receivabtes. Exposure pertaining to these are substantially with group entities.
Accordingly, there are na significant credit risks.

. Liquldity risk management
Liquidity risk refers to the risk of financial distress arising due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectediy deteriorate
and requiring financing. Being a core investment company, the company generates sufficient cash flow from its operations. The Company manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets
and liabilities.
The fallowing tables detail the Company's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods and its non-
derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial fiabilities bassd on the eariest date on which

the Carmpany can be required fo pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows,




Liguidity exposure as at 31 Mar 2023

[Particulars <1 year 15 years > 5 years Total
[Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalenis 1,589.93 - - 1,589.93
Loans 1.333.74 - - 1,333.74
Investments -
-Investment in shares of subsidiaries & associates - - 14,928.65 14,928.65
-Investment in other equity shares - - 1.40 1.40
- Investment in mutual funds 3.118.74 - - 3,118.74
Other Financial Assets 478.58 - - 478.58
Tota! financial assets 6,520.99 - 14,930.05 21,451.04
Financial liabilitles
Borrowirngs - 2,250.00 - 2.250.00
Other payables 399.23 - - 399.23
Other financial liabilities 159.58 - - 159.88
Total financial llabilities 559.11 - - 2,809.11
<1 year 1.5 years > § years Total
Cash and cash equivalents 72.02 - - 72.02
Loans 228232 - - 228232
Investments -
-lnvestment in shares of subsidiaries & associates - - 11,838.85 11,838.65
-tnvestment in other equity shares - - 1.40 1.40
- Investment in mutual funds 12.73 - - 12.73
Other Financial Assets 21.0¢ - - 21.00
Total financial assets 2,388.08 - 11,840.05 14,228.13
Financial liablfities R
Borrowings - 1,800.00 - 1,600.00
Other payables 109 - - 1.09
Other financial liabilities 8.75 - - 875
Total financial liabilities 9.85 - - 1,609.85
. Level wisa disclosure of financlal instruments
Particulats 3110312023 31/0312022 Level Valuation
techniques and
key inputs
Investrment in Mutual funds 3,118.74 12.73 1.00 |Quoted prices in
. active market

The canying amounts of trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financia! assets and liabilities other
than those disclosed in the above table, are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Shriram Credit Company Limited

Report on the audit of the Consolidated IndAS Financial Statements

1. Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated IndAs financial statements of Shriram
Credit Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its
subsidiaries (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as“the Group™), its
associates and jointly controlled entities, which comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2023, and the consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter
referred to as “the consolidated IndAs financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us,the aforesaid consolidated IndAS financial statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the IndAS and
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31, 2023, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated total comprehensive
income and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended.

2. Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the Code of Fthics issued by ICAI, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Offices also at
Mumbai Chennai
Bengaluru Coimbatore Hyderabad 1
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3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated Ind As financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and informing our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

We have identified the matters described below to be the key audit matters in respect of
Shriram Credit Company Limited:

a}) The scheme of amalgamation between M. Shriram Credit Company Limited

(“Transferee Company™) and its wholly owned subsidiary company M/s. Shriram
Financial Products Solution (Chennai) Private Limited (“Transferor Company”),
pursuant to provisions of Section 233 and other applicable provisions, was aproved by
the Regional Director, Chennai, vide order dated April 18, 2023 with effect from
January 1, 2023.
The amalgamation was accounted as a common control business combination in
accordance with the accounting prescribed under “Pooling of Interest Method” as laid
down in Appendix C of Ind AS 103 (Business Combinations of entities under common
control) and as per the specific provisions of the scheme. '

b) Shriram Wealth Ltd. is having negative net worth of Rs.5 94.97 lacs. Continuity of the
company is dependent upon future cash generation and profitability.

Our report is not modified in this respect.

4. Information Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Anditor’s
Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,
The other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and
Analysis, Board’s Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility
Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Qur opinion on the
consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ey




K. S. AIYAR & CO

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

5. Responsibilities of Management and those charged with governance for the
consolidated financial statements '

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and
presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements in term of the requirements of
the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance including its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which
have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors
of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are
responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities.

6. Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
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traud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

A further description of the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements is included in Annexure A. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

7. QOtherMatters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of six subsidiaries, whose
financial statements / financial information reflect total assets of Rs. 53,193.39 lacs as at 31
March, 2023, iotal income of Rs. 30,400.55 lacs and net cash flows amounting to Rs. (-)
5,858.45 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements. The consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include the Group’s
share of net profit after tax of Rs. (-) 654.51 lacs for the year ended 31% March, 2023, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, whose financial statements / financial
information have not been audited by us. These financial statements / financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the
Management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of
the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and
associates, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

(Rs. In Lacs)
Sr. Name of the Subsidiary Group’s Group’s Group’s Name of the
No. Companies share of share of | share of net Auditor
total total cash flows
assets income
1. | Shriram Asset Management 8119.77 583.61 426.75 | GD. Apte & Co.
Company Limited
2. | Shriram Wealth Limited 304.61 965.29 -38.56 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
3. | Shriram Fortune Solutions 4,171.25 17,516.23 -1,396.18 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
[.imited
4, | Way 2 Wealth Securities 19,828.35 6,198.09 -3,445.51 | Pijush Gupta & Co.
Private Limited
5. | Shriram Insight Share Brokers 20,442.82 5,050.77 -1,406.18 | KGRS & Co.
Limited ,
6. | Sea Funds Management India 326.58 86.56 1.23 | N J Suresh &
Private Limited Associates
TOTAL 53,193.39 30,400.55 -5,858.45
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Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financia! statements, and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements / financial information certified by the Management.

8. Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(i) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

¢. The Consolidated Balance Sheet and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
Companies (indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding
Company as on 31% March, 2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies,
associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India, none of the
directors of the Group companies, its associate companies and jointly controlled
companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31 st March, 2023 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section164(2) of theAct.

f. With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the

Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
Annexure B.

g. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending
litigations on the consolidated financial position of the Group, its associates and
jointly controlled entities.
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1. The Group, its associates and jointly controlled entities did not have any material
foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiary
companies, associate companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in
India.

(i) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of the Companies
(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order” “CARO”) issued by the Central
Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s
report, according to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the
CARQ reports issued by us for the Company and its subsidiaries included in the
consolidated financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under CARO is
applicable, we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks in these CARO
reports.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

artered Accountants
Regn. No. 100186W

S.Gho

Paetfier
Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBV4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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Annexure A

Responsibilities for Audit of Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements,

Whether due to fraud or error, designand perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting & material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Undersection 143(3)(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system inplace and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the
Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to continueas a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modif your opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group and its associates and jointly controlled entities to cease
to continueas a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group and its associates and jointly controlled
entities to express an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we
are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
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responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeble user of the consolidated financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evalaute the effect of any identiifed
misststements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such
other entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ali
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards. From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.

artered Accountants
Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927

UDIN: 23050927BGYEBV4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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ANNEXURE B

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (REFERRED TO PARAGRAPH 8 (f) OF EVEN
DATE ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF SHRIRAM
CREDIT COMPANY LIMTED

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Shriram Credit
Company Limited as of and for the year ended March 31, 2023, we have audited the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of Shriram Credit Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) and its subsidiary Companies, which are Companies
incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company, its subsidiary Companies, which are
Companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Holding Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to
the respective Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, both, issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India, and
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
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on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
Qor erTor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the
other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting of the Holding Company & subsidiary companies
incorporated in India,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles.

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
We draw attention to paragraph 3 on Key Audit Matters.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject
{o the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion and based on consideration of the audit reports of the other auditors read with
Key Audit Matters referred to in Para 3 of Independent Auditors Report, in case of audited

financia! statements referred to in “Other Matters” below, the Holding Company, its subsidiary
Companies, which are Companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all material

10
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respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Holding Company,
insofar as it relates to the subsidiary Companies, which are Companies incorporated in India, is
based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such subsidiary Companies incorporated in
India.

We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, the consolidated
financial statements of the Holding Company, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2023 and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and our
report expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

For K.S.Aiyar & Co.
rtered Accountants
Fiymy Regn. No. 100186W

Membership No.: 050927
UDIN: 23050927BGYEBV4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10-05-2023
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

Rég office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017

CIN : U65993TN1980PLCODB215
Consolidated Balance Sheet as on 31 March 2023

{Amount in Rs.Lacs) | (Amount in Rs.Lacs)
Particulars Note No. [ As on 31st March As on 31st March
2023 {Audited) 2022(Audited)
I [ASSETS
Non Current Assets
{a) Property Plant & Equipment 2 4,500.66 4,614.71
{b) Capital Work in Progress : 7.08 7.08
{c) Financial Assets
{i} Investments 3 1,352.08 7.222.44
{i) Loans and Advances 5 1,883.11 3415.76
{d} Non Current Tax Assets (Net) 0.38 474.76
(e) Other non cumrent Assets 6 1,267 .84 156,55
9,011.15 15,891.1
Current Assets
{a) Financial Assets
{i) Investments 3 11,266.31 4,738.91
{if) Trade Receivables 7 4,797.33 11,644.04
(ii} Cash and cash equivalents 4 17,589.95 24,317.28
(iv) Loans and Advances 5 3.363.77 3,639.67
(b) Inventories 13.28 13.24
(c) Current Tax Assets (Net) 2,684.09 1,502.80
(d) Other cuirent assets 6 5,595.48 1,097.08
46,310.20 46,953.02
TOTAL 55,321.35 62,844.33
H |Equity and liabilities
Equity
{a) Share Capital 8.1 2,406.31 . 2,406.31
()} Other Equity 9 27,376.75 27.571.11
{c) Minority Interest 2,549.48 63.87
32,332.54 30,041.29
Liabilities
Non Current Liabilities
{a) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 10 {1,319.45) {911.60)
{b} Provisions 12 1,272.60 1,413.52
{c} Subordinated Liability 8.2 2,400.00 2,400.00
(d) Other non current liabilities 11 3,275.12 3,081.87
Current Liabilities
{a} Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 377.89 901.03
{ii} Trade Payables 12,610.93 19,964.52
{b) Other cument fiabilities 11 2,869.25 3,702.44
{c) Provisions 12 1,502.47 2,251.25
22,988.81 32,803.04
TOTAL 55,321.35 62,844.33
The notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
For K.5.Aiyar & Co. - Shriram Credit Company Limited
!
\ \\ /f Akhilesh Kuma Slngh M R Shashi
: LT RaS -/r Vice Chai Managing Director
embership No. 050927 e s DIN : 0042157? DIN : 00492377

UDiN - 23050927 BG.YEBV4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date:10.05.2023



SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
CIN : US5993TN1880PLC008215

Congolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 31 March 2023

(Amount in Rs.Lacs) { (Amount In Re.Lacs)
?I Nd Particulars Note For the year ended | For the year ended
31st March 31st March
2023(Audited) 2022(Audited)
I |Revenue from Operations 13.(a) 34,618.7% 39,248 75
Il [Other Incoma 13.{b} 733.47 2,425.30
Il |Total Income (1+2) 35.352.27 41,674.05
I |Exponses S
(8) Employees benefit axpense 14 11,328.07 12,157 92
{b) Finance Cost 15 781.97 389.57
{c) Depreciation & amortisation expense 2 1,007.64 978.58
{d} Other expenses 16 23,122.25 27,768.18
{d) Provisions & Write offs 17 15.50 38.26
Total Expenses 36,255.44 41,332.52
V |Profiti{loss) before exceptional items and tax (l[HV) {803.17) 341.52
V1 |Exceptional tems - -
VIl |Profiti{loss) before tax (V-VI) {903.17) 341.52 ]
VIt |Tax Expenses '
{a)Current Tax 355.93 167.27
{b) Deferred Tax 413.77) 35.39
(¢) Earlier Year Tax 78.85 84.22
Total Tax Expenses 2911 286.88
IX |Profiti{loss) for the period from continuing opearations (Vi 924.28 54.64
X |Profitfloss) From discontinued operations - -
Xl |Tax expenses of discontinued operations - -
Xl [Profit/(loss) From discontinued operations (after tax) (X-X1) - -
Xl |Prefiti{loss) for the period (1X(-XII} {924.28) 54.64
XIV [Other Comprehensive Income
A (i) biems that will not be rectassified to profit or loss 2412 85.42
(i) Income tax relating to itern that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (6.14} 57.11
B (i) tems that wil! reclassified to profit or loss - -
{ii) Income tax relating to item that will be reclassified to profit or loss - -
XV (Total comprehensive income for the period (XH1+XIV) {906.30} 197.17
Total Profit for the year attributable to: .
- Owners of the Company (799.28) 110.64
« Noncontrolling interest {125.00) {56.00)
Other comprehensive incomel(loss) for the year attributable to:
- Owmers of the Company 19.29 144.41
- Non-controlting interest (1.31} {1.88}
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company (779.89) 255.05
- Non-controlling interest (126.31) {57.88)
XV |Minority Interest {125.00) .
XVl |Total comprehensive income for the period after Minority Interest {781.30} ] 253.17
Tha noles referred to abave form an integral part of the financial statements

As per our raport of even date

embership No. 050927
UDIN -23050927BGYEBV4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

For and on bebhalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Credit Company Limlted

Akhilesh Kumar Singh MR Shas
Vice Chairmpn Managing Director
DIN : 00421977 DIN : 00492377
PR
Trina Nandl|
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date: 10.05.2023



SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED
Reg office: Shriram House, No.4 Burkit Road, T Nagar Chennai 600 017
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st Mar 2023

Rs. In Lacs
. As on 31st March As on 31st March
Particulars 2023({Audited) 2022(Audited)
A.|CASH FLOW FROM QPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before Tax {903.17) 341.52
Interest Income on Bank deposits {153.65) {1.400.58)
Dividend Income (3.69) {1.64)
Prior period item - -
Provision & Write offs 11.13 (29.29)
Profit on sale of investments (6.03) {80.86)
Depreciation 1,007.64 978.59
Interest Paid 781.97 389.57
Operating profit before change in working capital 7421 197.31
Movements [r Working Capital:
Decrease / (Increase) in Other Assets 2,045.55 509,88
increase / ( Decrease ) in Current Liabilities and provisions {9,302.22) 1,681.72
Net cash from/{used in} operating activities (6,522.46) 2,388.01
Direct taxes paid {728.02) 733.13
Net Cash from f {used in) operating activities {7.250.48} 3,122.04
B|CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of Investments {Net) {651.01) 1,248.30
Interest income on Deposits 153.65 1,400.58
Sale of Fixed Assets 1,002 .45 53.62
Purchase of Fixed Assets {1,896.05) (1,127.74)
Dividend from Mutual Funds 3.69 1.64
Net cash from / (used in) in investing activities {1,387.27) 1,5676.40
CICASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from change in net worth 3,215.53 (92.64)
Subordinated Liabilitiy - -
Secured Borrowings (523.14) 501.03
Interest paid (781.97) (389.57)
Net Cash from / (used In) Financing activities 1,910.42 418.82
Total increasef(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {A+8+C) {6,727.33) 5117.27
Cash and Cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 24,317.28 19,200.01
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the year 17,689.95 24,317.28

As per our report of even date
Fdr K.S.Aiyar & Co.

ered Accountants

Regn No. 100186W

Membership No. 050927
UDIN ~23050927BGYEBV 4637

Place: Mumbai
Date: 10.05.2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Shriram Credit Cornpany Limited

Akhilesh Kumar Bingh
Vice Chairmdn
DIN : 00421577

Managing Directol
DIN : 00492377

Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

Place: Chennai
Date;10.05.2023
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SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

(1) Notes forming part of Financial Statements

1. Corporate Information

Shriram Credit Company Limited ("the company") is a public limited company domiciled in India
and incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The company is a Non Deposit
Systemically Important company registered with the Reserve Bank of India.

2. Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as
amended from time to time).The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the application of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant
Accounting Standards. Accounting policies have been consistently applied to all periods presented,
unless otherwise stated.

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the
disclosed amount of contingent liabilities. Areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions are significant to the Company are discussed in Note 6-
Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR).

3. Presentation of financial statement
The financial statements of the Company are presented in Schedule 11T format of the Companies Act,
2013 applicable to NBFCs, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA). Financial assets
and financial liabilities are generally reported on a gross basis except when, there is an unconditional
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future event
and the parties intend to settle on a net basts in the following circumstances:

i. The normal course of business

ii. The event of default

itt. The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/or its counterparties
Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements (e.g. International Swaps and
Derivative Association Arrangements) are presented net if all the above criteria are met.

4. Statement of compliance

These standalone or separate financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance
with Indian Accounting Standards as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
as amended and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other relevant
provisions of the Act.




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

5. Significant accounting policies

5.1 Financial instruments

(i) Classification of financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial assets into the following measurement categories:

1. Financial assets to be measured at amortised cost
2. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
3. Financial assets to be measured at fair value through profit or loss account

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the financial assets’ cash flows and the

Company’s business mode! for managing financial assets which are explained below:

Business model assessment

The Company determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of

financial assets to achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher

level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

» How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business
model are evaluated and reported to the entity's key management personnel

» The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within
that business model) and the way those risks are managed

» How managers of the business are compensated (for example, whether the compensation is based
on the fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash flows collected)

» The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Company’s
assessment. The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without
taking ‘worst case' or 'stress case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are
realised in a way that is different from the Company's original expectations, the Company does not
change the classification of the remaining financial assets held in that business model, but
incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial
assets going forward.

The Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPPI) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company assesses the contractual terms of financial
assets to identify whether they meet the SPPI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial
recognition and may change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there are repayments
of principal or amortisation of the premium/discount).

In making this assessment, the Company considers whether the contractual cash flows are consistent
with a basic lending arrangement i.e. interest includes only consideration for the time value of money,
credit risk, other basic lending risks and a profit margin that is consistent with a basic lending
arrangement. Where the contractual terms introduce exposure to risk or volatility that are inconsistent
with a basic lending arrangement, the related financial asset is classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss.

The Company classifies its financial liabilities at amortised costs unless it has designated liabilities at
fair value through the profit and loss account or is required to measure liabilities at fair value through
_&erivative liabiliti(__:s.--___ R T T

R

&




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LTD

(ii} Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Debt instruments
These financial assets comprise bank balances, Loans, Trade receivables, investments and other
financial assets.
Debt instruments are measured at amortised cost where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b} are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by holding to collect contractual
cash flows.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at amortised cost.

(iii) Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

Debt instruments
Investments in debt instruments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
where they have:
a) contractual terms that give rise to cash flows on specified dates, that represent solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding; and
b) are held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

These debt instruments are initially recognised at fair value plus directly attributable transaction costs
and subsequently measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are
included in other comprehensive income within a separate component of equity. lmpairment losses or
reversals, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit and loss.
Upon disposal, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Egquity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by the Company in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 ‘Business Combination’
applies, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable
election has been made by management and when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. As at reporting date, there are no equity instruments measured at
FVOCI.

Amounts presented in other comprehensive income are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss.
Dividends on such investments are recognised in profit or loss.
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(iv) Items at fair value through profit or loss

Items at fair value through profit or loss comprise:

» Investments (including equity shares) held for trading;

» Items specifically designated as fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition; and

+ Debt instruments with contractual terms that do not represent solely payments of principal and
interest.

Financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value,
with transaction costs recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred. Subsequently, they
are measured at fair value and any gains or losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as
they arise. '

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is acquired or incurred principally for
selling or repurchasing in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are
managed together and for which there is evidence of short-term profit taking, or it is a derivative not
in a qualifying hedge relationship.

Trading derivatives and trading securities are classified as held for trading and recognised at fair
value.

Financial instruments designated as measured at fair value through profit or loss

Upon initial recognition, financial instruments may be designated as measured at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset may only be designated at fair value through proﬁf or loss if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces measurement or recognition inconsistencies (i.. eliminates an
accounting mismatch) that would otherwise arise from measuring financial assets or liabilities on a
different basis.

A financial liability may be designated at fair value through profit or loss if it eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch or:

» if a host contract contains one or more embedded derivatives; or

+ if financial assets and liabilities are both managed and their performance evaluated on a fair value
basis in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy.

Where a financial liability is designated at fair value through profit or loss, the movement in fair value
attributable to changes in the Company’s own credit quality is calculated by determining the changes
in credit spreads above observable market interest rates and is presented separately in other
comprehensive income. As at the reporting date, the Company has not designated any financial
instruments as measured at fair value through profit or loss.

(v) Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at
amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue
funds, and transaction costs that are an integral part of the Effective Interest Rate (EIR).
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(vi) Financial guarantees

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial statements (within Provisions) at fair

value, being the premium received. Subsequent to initial recognition, the company’s liability under

each guarantee is measured at the higher of the -amount initially recognised less cumulative

amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

» The premium is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the life
of the guarantee.

{vii) Reclassification of financia! assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified. The Company did not reclassify any of its financial assets or
liabilities in 2017-18 and until the year ended March 31, 2023.

(viii} Recognition and De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities

Recognition:

a)} Loans and Advances are initially recognised when the funds are transferred to the customers’
account or delivery of assets by the dealer, whichever is earlier. '

b) Investments are initially recognised on the settlement date.

c) Debt securities, deposits and borrowings are initially recognised when funds reach the Company.

d) Other Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date, i.¢., the date that the
Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular
way frades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place.

- De-recogmition of financial assets due fo substantial modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms and
conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new loan, with the
difference recognised as a de-recognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not
already been recorded. The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
purposes, unless the new loan is deemed to be Purchased or Originated as Credit Impaired (POCI).

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does
not result in de-recognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the
Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded.

De-recognition of finamcial assets other than due to substantial modification
a) Financial assets:
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired.
The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the
transfer qualifies for de-recognition.
The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either:

1. The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the

financial asset, or
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ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’
arrangement

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to
pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the "eventual recipients’), when all of the following three
conditions are met:

i The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

ii. The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients
iil. The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients

without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during
the period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for de-recognition if either:
i. The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
it. The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

When the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards and has
retained control of the asset, the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of the Company’s
continuing involvement, in which case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Company has retained.

b) Financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original financial liability and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

(ix) Impairment of financial assets

Overview of the ECL principles

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial assets not
held at FVTPL, together with financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as ‘financial
instruments’. Equigy-fi§trgents are not subjectte impairment under Ind AS 109. '
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Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is the portion of Lifetime ECL that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date.

Both Lifetime ECLs and 12-month ECLs are calculated on either an individual basis or a collective
basis, depending on the nature of the underlying portfolio of financial instruments. The Company has
grouped its loan portfolio into Loans, Secured loans against Shares and Property.

The Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, at the end of each reporting period,
of whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition, by
considering the change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining life of the financial
instrument. The Company does the assessment of significant increase in credit risk at a borrower
level. If a borrower has various facilities having different past due status, then the highest days past
due (DPD) is considered to be applicable for all the facilities of that borrower.

Based on the above, the Company categorises its loans into Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described
below:

Stage 1

All exposures where there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or
that has low credit risk at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon origination are
classified under this stage. The company classifies all standard advances and advances upto 30 days
default under this category. Stage 1 loans also include facilities' where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 2. -

Stage 2

All exposures where there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition but are
not credit impaired classified under this stage. 30 Days Past Due is considered as significant increase
in credit risk.

Stage 3 _

All exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this stage. For exposures
that have become credit impaired, a lifetime ECL is recognised and interest revenue is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost (net of provision) rather than the gross
carrying amount. 90 Days Past Due is considered as default for classifying a financial instrument as
credit impaired.

Credit-impaired financial assets:
At each reporting date, the company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and
debt financial assets carried at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

¢) The restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on terms that the company would not
consider otherwise;
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Financial gnarantee contracts

The Company’s liability under financial guarantee is measured at the higher of the amount initially
recognised less cumulative amortisation recognised in the statement of profit and loss, and the ECL
provision. For this purpose, the Company estimates ECLs by applying a credit conversion factor.

The mechanics of ECL:

The Company calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted scenarios to measure the expected cash
shortfalls, discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash shortfall is the difference between the
cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive.

The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below and the key elements are, as follows:

Probability of Default (PD) - The Probability of Default is an estimate of the likelihood of default
over a given time horizon. A default may only happen at a certain time over the assessed period, if the
facility has not been previously derecognised and is still in the portfolio.

Exposure at Default (EAD)- The Exposure at Default is an estimate of the exposure at a future
default date.

Loss Given Default (LGD) - The Loss Given Default is an estimate of the loss arising in the case
where a default occurs at a given time. It is based on the difference between the contractual cash flows
due and those that the Company would expect to receive, including from the realisation of any
collateral. It is usually expressed as a percentage of the EAD.

Forward looking information

While estimating the expected credit losses, the Company reviews macro-economic developments/
natural calamities occurring in the market it operates in. While the internal estimates of PD, LGD
rates by the Company may not be always reflective of such relationships, temporary overlays, if any,
are embedded in the methodology to reflect such trends/events reasonably.

If an event warrants a provision higher than as mandated under ECL. methodology, the Company may
make the same,

(x) Write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial asset when the Company has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. This is
generally the case when the Company determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of
income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subjected to write-offs. Any
subsequent recoveries against such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.
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(xi) Determination of fair value
On initial recognition, all the financial instruments are measured at fair value.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

i. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

ii. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 1nputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a
hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial mstruments - Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted
prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company has access to at the
measurement date. The Company considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading
activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there
are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

Level 2 financial instruments - Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant,
are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the
instrument’s life. Such inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical instruments in inactive markets and observable inputs other than quoted
prices such as interest rates and yield curves, implied volatilities, and credit spreads. In addition,
adjustments may be required for the condition or location of the asset or the extent to which it relates
to items that are comparable to the valued instrument. However, if such adjustments are based on
unobservable inputs which are significant to the entire measurement, the Company will classify the
instruments as Level 3.

Level 3 financial instruments - Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to
the measurement as whole,

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred, :
Day I profit or loss
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The best evidence of the fair value of a financial instrument at initial recognition is the transaction
price (i.e. the fair value of the consideration given or received) unless the fair value of that instrument
is evidenced by comparison with other observable current market transactions in the same instrument
(i.e. without modification or repackaging) or based on-a valuation technique whose variables include
only data from observable markets. When such evidence exists, the Company recognises the
difference between the transaction price and the fair value in profit or loss on initial recognition (i.e.
on day one}.

When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair
value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair
value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is
derecognised.

5.2Revenue from operations

(i) Interest Income

Interest income is recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to the gross carrying
amount of financial assets other than credit-impaired assets and financial assets classified as measured
at FVTPL. '

The EIR in case of a financial asset is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

Interest income on credit impaired assets is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the net
amortised cost (net of provision) of the financial asset.

(ii) Dividend Income
Dividend income is recognised
a. When the right to receive the payment is established,
b. it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity
and
c. the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably
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(iii} Rental Income

Rental income arising from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
In cases where the increase is in line with expected general inflation Rental Income is recognised as
per the contractual terms,

Operating leases are leases where the Company does not transfer substantially all of the risk and
benefits of ownership of the asset.

(iv) Fees & Commission Income

Fees and commissions are recognised when the Company satisfies the performance obligation, at fair
value of the consideration received or receivable based on a five-step model as set out below, unless
included in the effective interest calculation:

Step 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer

Step 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract

Step 3: Determine the transaction price

Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract

Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance obligation -

(v) Net gain on Fair value changes

Any differences between the fair values of financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or
loss , held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain / loss. In
cases there is a net gain in the aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains on fair value changes
under Revenue from operations and if there is a net loss the same is disclosed under “Expenses” in the
statement of Profit and Loss.

However, net gain / loss on de-recognition of financial instruments classified as amortised cost is ,
presented separately under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Similarly, any realised gain or loss on sale of financial instruments measured at FVTPL presented separately
under the respective head in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

5.3 Expenses
(i) Finance costs
Finance costs represents Interest expense recognised by applying the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) to
the gross carrying amount of financial liabilities.
The EIR in case of a financial liability is computed
a. As the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability to the gross carrying amount of the amortised cost of a financial
liability.
b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument in estimating the cash
flows
¢. Including all fees paid between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

Any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash flows is recognised in interest income
with the corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.
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Interest expense includes issue costs that are initially recognized as part of the carrying value of the
financial liability and amortized over the expected life using the effective interest method. These
include fees and commissions payable to advisers and other expenses such as external legal costs,
Rating Fee etc, provided these are incremental costs that are directly related to the issue of a financial
liability.

(i) Retirement and other employee benefits

Short term employee benefit

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as
short-term employee benefits. These benefits include short term compensated absences such as paid
annual leave. The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected to be paid in
exchange for the services rendered by employees is recognised as an expense during the period.
Benefits such as salaries and wages, etc. and the expected cost of the bonus/ex-gratia are recognised
in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment employee benefits

a) Defined contribution schemes

All the employees of the Company are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund Scheme,
defined contribution plans in which both the employee and the Company contribute monthly at a
stipulated rate. The Company has no liability for future benefits other than its annual contribution and
recognises such contributions as an expense in the period in which employee renders the related
service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service received before the Balance Sheet date
exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognised as a liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution
due for services received before the Balance Sheet date, then excess is recognised as an asset to the
extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

b) Defined Benefit schemes

The Company provides for the gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering all employees. The
plan provides for lump sum payments to employees upon death while in employment or on separation
from employment after serving for the stipulated years mentioned under “The Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972°. The present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plan is determined based
on actuarial valuation, carried out by an independent actuary at each Balance Sheet date, using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as giving rise to an additional
unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final
obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The discount rates
used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit plan are based on the
market yields on Government Securities as at the Balance Sheet date.

Net interest recognized in profit or loss is calculated by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The actual return on the plan
assets above or below the discount rate is recognized as part of re-measurement of net defined liability
or asset through other ;2531 rehensive income. An actuarial. valuation involves making various

= B
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assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination
of the discount rate, attrition rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, these liabilities are highly sensitive to changes in
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The Company fully contributes all ascertained liabilities to The Trustees - Shriram Credit Company
Ltd Employees Group Gratuity Assurance Scheme. Trustees administer contributions made to the
trust and contributions are invested in a scheme of insurance with Life Insurance Corporation of India
, the IRDA approved Insurance Company.

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the
balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI in the period in
which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Other long-term employee benefits

Company’s liabilities towards compensated absences to employees are accrued on the basis of
valuations, as at the Balance Sheet date, carried out by an independent actuary using Projected Unit
Credit Method. Actuarial gains and losses comprise experience adjustments and the effects of changes
in actuarial assumptions and are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The Company presents the Provision for compensated absences under provisions in the Balance
Sheet,

(iii) Rent Expense:

Identification of Lease:

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance
of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is
dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement conveys a right to use
the asset.

Recognition of lease payments:

Rent Expenses representing operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless the increase is in line with expected
general inflation, in which case lease payments are recognised based on contractual terms.

Leases that do not transfer to the Company substantially all of risks and benefits incidental to
ownership of the leased items are operating leases.

(iv) Other income and expenses
All Other income and expense are recognized in the period they accrue.

(v) Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date if there is any indication of
impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss is recognized wherever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of
the assets, net selling price and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time val money and risks specific to the asset.

i3
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In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no
such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. After impairment,
depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(vi) Taxes

Current Tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute
the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacted, by the reporting date in the countries
where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts. Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised for temporary differences, unused tax losses and unused tax
credits if it is probable that future taxable amounts will arise to utilise those temporary differences and
losses. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to income taxes Ievied by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a
net basis or their tax assets and liabilities are realised simultaneously.

14
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Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT)

Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current
tax. The Company recognizes MAT credit available as an asset only to the extent that it is probable
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the period for which
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which the Company recognizes MAT
credit as an asset in accordance with the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit Available in respect
of Minimum Alternative Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss and shown as “MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company
reviews the MAT Credit Entitlement asset at each reporting date and writes down the asset to the
extent the Company does not have convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax during the
specified period.

Goods and services tax /value added taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses
Expenses and assets are recognised net of the goods and services tax/value added taxes paid, except:

i. When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the
taxation authority, in which case, the tax paid is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as applicable

il When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of
receivables or payables in the balance sheet.

5.4 Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentational currency

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in which the Company
operates.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Initial recognition.
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Conversion:

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency, which are outstanding as at the year-
end, are translated at the year-end at the closing exchange rate and the resultant exchange differences
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
spot exchange rates as at the date of recognition.
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5.5Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the net amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less) and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and
balances with banks. They are held for the purposes of meeting short-term cash commitments (rather
than for investment or other purposes).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-
term deposits, as defined above.

5.6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, (if any). The total cost of assets comprises its purchase price, freight, duties,
taxes and any other incidental expenses directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or
methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent expenditure related to an item of tangible asset are added to its gross value only if it
increases the future benefits of the existing asset, beyond its previously assessed -standards of
performance and cost can be measured reliably. Other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed off
as and when incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided on Written Down Value (WDV) at the rates prescribed in Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013 except Leasehold Land which is amortized over the period of lease agreement
on straight line basis. Additions during the year are being depreciated on a pro-rata basis from the date
on which the asset was put to use. Similarly where any asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or
destroyed, the depreciation on such asset is calculated on a pro-rata basis upto the date on which such
asset has been sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed.

5.7 Intangible assets

Intangible assets being Computer Software acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at
cost. Intangible assets are carried at cost less amortization and impairment losses. It is amortized on
straight line basis over the estimated useful life which is presumed to be five years at present.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible
assets recognised as of 1 April, 2017 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP and use
that carrying value as its deemed cost as of transition date.

5.8 Investment Property

Properties, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment property and
measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs. For transition to Ind AS, the company has
elected to adopt as deemed cost, the carrying value of investment properfy as per Indian GAAP less
accumulated depreciation and cumulative impairment (if any) as on the transition date of April 1,
2017. S
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Investment properties (other than land) are depreciated using WDV method over their estimated
useful lives, Investment properties generally have a useful life of 60 years. The useful life has been
determined based on technical evaluation by management.

On transition to Ind AS, the group has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
investment properties recognised as at 1st April 2017, measured as per previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of investment properties.

5.9 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the enterprise has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

When the effect of the time value of money is material, the enterprise determines the level of
provision by discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific
to the liability. The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss
net of any reimbursement. -

5.10 Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the
control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured
reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the
financial statements.

5.11 Earning Per Share |

The Company reports basic and diluted earnings per share in accordance with Ind AS 33 on Earnings
per share. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting preference dividend and attributable taxes) by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as of the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. In
computing the dilutive earnings per share, only potential equity shares that are dilutive and that either
reduces the earnings per share or increases loss per share are included.
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6. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires the management to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are
revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities
in future periods.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:

6.1 Business Model Assessment

Classtfication and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the SPPI and the business
model test. The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of
financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how
these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Company monitors
financial assets measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and whether the
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining
financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been
a change in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

6.2 Defined employee benefit assets and liabilities

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are
determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions
that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the
valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

6.3 Fair value measurement:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using various
valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible,
but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments
include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in
assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.
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6.4 Impairment of loans portfolio

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when
determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These
estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which can result in different levels of
allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss
experience and adjust when necessary.

6.5 Contingent liabilities and provisions other than impairment on loan portfolio

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened
element of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation,
arbitration in the ordinary course of the Company’s business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in relation to a specific
case and considers such outflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or probable, but a reliable estimate
cannot be made, a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses, the
Company takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and
historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to.conclude on these
estimates.

6.6 Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method

The Company’s EIR methodology, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans
given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages and other
characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments and penalty interest and charges).

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and
lifecycle of the instruments, as well expected changes to India’s base rate and other fee
income/expense that are integral parts of the instrument

6.7 Other estimates:
These include contingent liabilities, useful lives of tangible and intangible assets etc.
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5. Loans & advances Rs. In Lacs
As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Others Cthars
Particutars Short Term Long Term Total Short Term Long Term Total
|Loans
{A) (i} Bills purchased and Bills discounted - - . .
(iiy Loan repayable on demand 2,623 47 1,333.63 3,957.10 2,253.47 - 2,253.47
{iiiyTerm Joans {To Related Parly) - . - - - .
|(iv) Leasing - - . - - .
|m Deposits - 549.37 549.37 - 934 02 934.02
{vi) Loan Against Policies - - - -
{vii) Loan To employees 173.25 - 173.25 171.42 - 171.42
Others 567.056 0.11 567.16 1,214.77 2.481.74 3,686.51
Total {A) -Gross 3,363.77 1,883.11 5,245.88 3,639.66 3415.76 7,055.42
|Less: Impairment loss allowance - - - .
Total {A) -Net 3,363.77 1,883.11 5,246.88 3,639.66 3,415.76 7,055.42
(B) (i) Secured by tangible assets - - - ) . .
{ii) Secured by intangible assets 2.623.47 1,883.00 4,506.47 2,253.47 . 934.02 3,187.49
(ili) Covered by Bank/Govemnment :
Guarantees - - - - .
(iv} Unsecured 740.31 0.11 740.41 1,388.19 2,481.74 3,867.93
Total {B) -Gross 3,363.77 1,683.11 5,246.88 3,639.66 3415.76 7,055.42
|Less: Impairment loss allowance - - - - - -
Total (B} -Net 3,363.77 1,883.11 5,246.88 3,639.66 3,415.76 7,055.42
{C) {I) Loans in India
(i} Public Deposits - 1,883.00 1,883.00 - 934.02 934.02
(i} Cthers 3,383.77 0.11 3,363.88 3,630.86 2481.74 6,121.40
Total {C) -Gross 3,363.77 1,883.11 5,246.88 3,639.66 341576 7,055.42
Less: Impaimment loss allowance - - - - - -
Total (C) () -Net 31,363.77 1,883.11 5,246.88 3,639.66 3,415.76 7,055.42
{C} (I} Loans Quiside India - - - - - .
Less: Impaiment loss aliowance - - - - R .
Total {C} {ll}-Net - - - - . .
Total C{l) and C{il) 3,363.77 1,882.11 5,246.88 3,639.67 3,415.76 7,055.42
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4, Cash and cash equivalents

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
a. Cash and cash equivalents
I. Cash on Hand 10.48 9.87
1. Balance with Scheduled banks in cumrent account(s) 3.719.73 8,436.53
3,730.21 8,445.20
k. Other Bank Balance
Ereposit with maturity lesa than 80 days - -
1. Beposit with maturity for mere than 3 menths but less than 12 months 4 588 75 15,872.08
ii.Deposit with oviginal maturity of more than 12 months - -
lidnterest Accrued & Due on bank Fixed Deposit 49.73 -
¢. Othar than Bank Balance - -
Deposit with exchange as Mangin money $,224,25 -
13,859.74 15,872.08
17,580.95 24.317.28
8. Other Assets
As at 31-03-2023 As at 34-03-2022
Particulars
Long Tern Short Term Long Term Short Term
Prepald Expenses fi.24 12565 9.66 25.60
(Caims Receivable - 10.73 - -
Statutory Recdivabies 42.18 B81.05 3837 -
Others 1.219.44 . 5,360.04 110.52 1,071.48
1,267.54 65,595.48 156 55 7,057.08
7. Trade Recelvables
Particulars Ag at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
Secured and Consldered Good
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months 108.60 -
Others 2,184.52 14,668.00
L 1 and Considered Good
Others 2,767 68 -
Gross Total 5,060.81 11,666.00
Less: Provisions for Bad Debts 263,48 21.88
Net Total 4,797.33 11,644 .04
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8.1 Share Capitat Rs. In Lacs
Particulars Asg at 31-03-2023 As at 3103-2022
No. of Sharas Rs.In Lacs No. of Shares Rs. In Lacs
Autherised Share Capltal:
|Equity shares of Re.10/- each 2,70,00,000 2,700.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
‘Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares of Rs. 10/~ ) ) ; )
each
2,70,00,000 2,700.00 2,50,00,000 2,500.00
1ssued, subscribed and pald up capital:
Equity share of Rs. 10/- each 240,863,124 2 406.91 2,40,563,129 240831

Termsfrights attached to share holders

lequity shares is entitied to one vote per share.

a)|Reconclllation of number of equity shares and equity share capital

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of

In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of equily shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the company, afier distribution of all
preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the share helders.

Ag at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Particulars —_—
Nurmber Rs. In Lacs Number Rs. In Lacs
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,40,63,12% 2,406.31 2,4D,83,129 2,406 31
Increase/Decrease - - . -
Batance as at the end of the year 2,40,63,129 2,406 2,40,63 129 2,408

the uitimate holding company

i

b)IDetails of shares held by holding compary or its ultimate holding company Including shares held by subsidiary or assoclates of hoiding company or

As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
of Shareholdel
Name r No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of HoldIng
Shriram Capital Limited - - 2,40.61,889 95.99%
Shriram Investment Holdings Lirmited 240 61,859 99.959% - -
¢}[Details of shareholders holding more than §% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Name of Shareholder Asat31032003 As at 31032022
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holdi_ng
| Shriram Capitaf Limited - - 2,40,61,689 89.95%
Shriram Investment Holdings Limited 240,614,859 99.99% - -
8.2 Subordinated Liabiiity
As at 31-03-2023 As at 31
Particulars t 31-03.2022
No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs No. of Shares Rs. in Lacs
Authorized Preforence Shares:
£.5% Non - Converlible Cummuiative Redeemable
Preference Shares (Tenure 10 years) 2,50,00,000 2.500 2.50,00,000 2,500
2,50,00,000 2,500 2.,50,00,000 2 500
Issued, subscribed and pald up capital:
Preference share of Rs. 10/. each 2,40,00,000 2,400 2,40,00,000 2,400
alReconclliation of number of Preference shares
i As at 31-03-2023 As at 31-03-2022
Particulars
Number Rs. In Lacs Murrber Rs. In Lacs
Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,40,00,000 2,400 - .
increase/Decrease - - 2,40,00,000 2,400
Balance as at the end of the year 2,40,00,000 2,400 2.40,00,000 2,400
b}{Detalls of shares held by holding com holding company including shares held by subsidiary or associates of holding company or
Ag at 31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Name of Shareholder As at
No. of Shares % of HoldIng_ No. of Sharaes % of Holding
Shriram Capital Lim_ized - - 2,40,00,000 100%
Shriram Investment Hokdings Limited 2,40,00,000 100.00% . -
cDetails of shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company:
Name of Shareholder As at 31-03-2023 As at 31032022
No. of Shares % of Holding No. of Shares % of Holding
Shriram Capital Limited - - 2.40,G0,000 1005,
Shriram Inveatment Holdings Limited 2.40.00,000 100.00% - -
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Is. Other Equlity fs. In Lacs
Particulars
Az at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
A (Capital Reserve 25.00 25.00
(H}Capital Reserve on Merger . 90.00
115.00 25,04
(Capital Reserve on Consolldation
|{Nat of Goodwill of Shriram Assets Management Co. 3.583.74 3,992 64
Lid. - Rs. 1,04,80,061/-)
|Adiustment for additional ecouisition - -
Totad 3,988=.74 399264
Statutory Reserve - at the beginning 957.43 95599
Add: Transfer during the period - 1.50
Statutory Reserve - at the end 95748 957.48
Sscurities Promium Reserve - at the beginning 7,326.5) 733652
Add: Receipts during the period 347.87 -
Secuities Premium Resarve - at the erd 7,684.29 7336.53
Remeaswemernt of Defined Benefit Plans -
ES0P adjustments 141 3.08
Ganeral Reserve 1527 15.27
Surpius - Al the beginning 15,241.11 14,896.61
Opening Adjustments - _
Dimuniticn in the vahe of Investment in Subsidiary - -
Cther Comprehensive income - -
[Acid: Mot Profit after tax ferred from Stot # of Profit and Loss {781.30) 253.18
Appropriations
1. Transfer to Statitory Resarve (Applicable to Shriram Cradit Company Limited) - {1.50),
ii. Provision for Tax - -
1. Adjustment for additional acquisition™ {76.98)] {7.35)
Tv. Cther Adpastments 22164 -
|surplus £ {Deficit} - Balencs at the end of the pericd 14,604.46 15,241.11
Total Reserves and Sumplus 27 378,75 2¢ 51111

in equity as per IND AS 110

* Difference batween the amounts of changa in non-controlling interest in W2WS & fair value of consideration paid by SCCL, recognised directly

J10. Deforred Tax Asset

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars As at 31-03-2023 | As at 31.03-2022
Opaning balance 91160 858.58
Aud: Azset recognized during the year 407 .86 €5.43
Less: Set-off during the year - iRl
Closing balance 1,319.46 911.60
11, Other Liabilities
Particulars A3 at 31-03-2023 Ag at 31.03-2022
Long Term Short Term Long Term Short Term
Taxes & Dulies Payabie 1255 11.08 - 28689
[Caution depoaits & Others - 143,57 - -
Stattory & Cther Dues pertaining to employees B361 33024 762.21 44838
Operating Lease Liability 1,940.65 184.83 1,808.54 334.08
Employea welfars fund 7829 470.96 4298 -
Cthers
Provision for expansas - - 456,14 8.80
{Claims & Other Payables 196.28 817.02 - 24979
Other Exponses 963.73 1,102.57 - 237470
3,275.12 2,069.25 3,081.87 3,702.44
12, Provisions
Particulars As at 31-03-2023 As at 31.03-2022
Lonyg Term Short Term Lonig Tam Short Term
For employee benefits
For Gratuity 856.13 130.24 840 .60 158.53
For Leave encashmant and availment 411,14 66.31 472.92 50.84
For Borus & Exgratia - 53.66 - 8288
Cthers
Provision on Standard Assota 533 B - 8.12
Provision for NPA, - - - -
[CSR @ be Daposited in Fund - 5232 - 41.46
Provision for Expaéitas - 11.04 - 956
Provigion for Distribulion of Expenses - 1.187.71 - 1,858.76
G = I L~ 1,272.60 1,502.47 1,413.52 225125
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13.{a) Revenus from vperations

RE. In Lacs
Partlculars Ag at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-03-2022
Income from financing activities
Interest on loan pevtfolio and other related charges 1,20B147 362.15
Commizsion, Brokerago & Other Service Charges 26,%02.21 37,563.20
Hecovery from Drs. Previously written off as bad - -
Management Fees 8.026.48 1.240.81
Intersst from othar financing activities
Interest on 1GD 47222 -
incoma on corrant investments
Dividend lncome 3.69 1.64
Profit’{l.oss) on Sale of Investments 6.03 BO0.88
34,618.79 39.248.75
11.{b) Other Income
'Particulm As at 31032023 | As at 31-03.2022
Interes! Income 153,65 1,400.58
Fair Value (3ain on Investmants 186.08 395.75
Other Mon-operating Income 413.76 628.96
T33.47 242530
Particulars As at 31-03-2023 | As at 31-02-2022
14. Employes banafit exp
Sataries, other allowances and bonus 10,590.06 11421.48
Contribution to PF, ESIC 588.00 58287
Staff welfare 150.01 153.57
Total 11,328.07 12,157.92
15, Flnance Cost
Interest paid on ICDA.0ans from institutions and others T851.97 380.57
Total TB1.97 389.57
18. Other aapenses
Distritution Expenses 12,772.97 17 471.02
Rent 3T6.B3 405.76
Traveting & Conveyance 411.22 289.62
Frinfing & Stationery 73.78 101.32
Repair & Maintenance 73t 62543
Communication Expenses 248.19 27333
Eleciricity Charges 121.26 130.42
Businesa Promotion 457,36 1,625.37
Professlonal charges 1,757.64 1,420,658
Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR) Expenses 11.86 16.78
Interest on Lease Liabiity 9,96 18,29
Commission 5,106,27 1,521.22
Iniemnal Audit and Concumrent Audit Fees - 0.60
Payment te Auditor
Statulory Audit Faes 55.21 45.74
Tax Audit Feas 1.40 234
Rei t of Exp 0.5 0.32
Total Payment to Auditor 56.76¢ 4839
Royalty Charges 79.20 78.34
Other expenses ME.65 374261
Total 23,122.25 27,768.18
17. Provisions and write offs
Provision for NPA - (0.13)
Provision for Standard assets {3.79) sae)f
Provisiens for Doubtful Debts 14.93 -
Bad Delrts written off 4,37 8755
Total 15.50 36.26




BHRRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

0

in the: opitian of the Board of Directors, m the ordinary course of business, Current Assals, Loan & Advances have a value on reallzalion at least equal fo the amounl al which They are stated.

(Contingent Liabikties not provided for
Rt i Lacs
Particulars S Marzd 31Mari22
Shriram Cradét Company Limied 12065 2N
Shrirem Fortune Salutions Limited B 85.21
Weakh Advisor Limitad - -
Shriram Financial Predus] Solution Private Limied - - 3756
Shriram Insigit Share Brokers Limiad 147980 92650
Shkrarn Aseats Management Company Lanited 279 151
Way 2 Wealth Securulies Pl L1 3775.15 3.251.36
{Fature O Facitty Amount Ganctioned | Ameount Utlzed
R, {R=)
{1 Debtess. Funding 1.500.00 -
Enok debts; Prenary securly 50% o receiable upto 7 days. Cument Assate Evedusive change on Curedt Assats. Leter aof comfort Comfort etter gven by Holdng Company Equity Shares: Partly
sacured by pledgieg ol 272217 unite of tCICI Prudental Liquid Fund -Growth
[} Benk Guardrbe 10.00 -
Fufly sacaured by FD.
[One of the Subsidianas, 5 Tachitea from HDFC Hank where its Howdhng Com| i.e Shairarn Credit Com Limited hes provided "Letter of Comfort” to bank
Nature OF Fac iy Amouni Amount Uiilisen
{Rs} Ra|
Counter Guarantee given t¢ HOFG Bank . 2.500.00 3.500.00
{prartty secured by FO of Rs. 1280 lakhs of the Company endorsed in favour of HDFC bank and 2,26, 108 units of Mutual Fund balenging ta company pledged in favour of the
bank }
|\|||Pa\|I 2 Wealth Borkers ﬁ Ltd. has avalled the iollowng iadiy Irem Auis bank Ltd. wherein Shrimam Credit Company Lid. has providad "Leltar of Gomfort” 1o bank:
l:aauue Of Facility Amaunl Amount Hiised
Sanctioned {Ra) {Rs)
Bank Guarantes 5,500.D0 5,500.00
[Ralatad Pary Dizclosure
fHokling Compairy Shrimam lnveestrnent Holdings Limitad {SIML)
Fellow Subsidiary Shariram Lifs Insurance Compaany (SLC)
Shriram General Msurance Company [SGH)
Shriram Value Services Limied (15}
VWay2Wealth insurance Brokers Privale Limited (W2WIB}
Gompany undar Commen Control Shriram Fnance Company Lid (SFL)
Shdram City Union Finance Lid {5CUF)
Step Down Subsidinry of Fallow Subsidi Novac Technaivgy Soluticns Private Limited
Shriram Housing Finance Umited {SHFL)
(Other Person having skgniicant Influenc Shriam Ownership Tresd (SOT)
A on 31 March 2023 Rs.In Lacs
Holding Company under Commen Atep Down Subsidiary of Fellow
Barticutars Company Fellow Subzidiary Control Subsidiary
KMP
SHL SLIG sGIC SVE WAWIE SFL - SCUF SHFL NCVAC Tota!
Recaived - - - - - 45872 - 48B.72
{Othar Incoma
Remal Incana - 48.44 HET - 1458 1.53 - 0.56 - 104.08
Distribution Incoma - 627554 2075 - - 531938 257895 - - 1726062
Salp of Sendces - - - - - 1,488.74 1522 98 10034 - 441813
[Brokerage Incoms - - - 202,03 - 45.62 - - - 24765
FD Commission - ou7 .00 - - 1.094.94 - - - - 1.088.02
Maintenznce of NCD & Equity Shares - - - nas - 3.00 - 0B o7 - 3.83
Markating Income - - - - - 3418 244 - - - 3663
Deposit Income - - - - - 158.65 1.88 - - - 160.74
Loan Bormowed - - - JEL 26 - - - - - 16428
Cihar Receipls - - 2051.28 - - 2.051.28
nterest Pald - - 054 - - - - 054
Orthar Expenses
Fiem Pald 442 . - . - 3895 11.30 - 54 80
Insurence Pramium - 3258 1015 - - - - - - 31.74
Reimbursement of Expanses 0.98 - - - - 19375 187 - - - 108.38
Royalty paid - - . 7920 - - - . - - 79.20
T A Notwork Support Services - - - - - - - 12010 - 180.14
Cther Exporses . 13181 - - - 42509 - 30.00 - - S5B5 9}
Fund recaived & refunded BRI 5,000 .G
|Subordinated Linbty 240000 - - - - - - - - - 240000
Dwhit Balanca Outstanding
Distribiion Incame - 73035 [+K1L] - - . - - - TOLATF
(Cther Recabable - - 0.74 0.03 873 1.08%.74 - 004 - 148.1 1.258.01
Investment in NGO - - - - - 21588 B - - - 21588
Invaztment in Fomd Dopost - - - - - 573052 413.04 - - 6,T43.55
Loan & Advance Given - - - - 0.1 - - - - - 0.2t
Credit Balonce Outstanding
[Runtal Payable - - - - - - - R - R
(Cther Gurrent Liabilty - - - 2578 - 35492 - - 1.21 - 421.80
Loan Barrowsd - - - 5{.00 - - - - - - 50.00




SHRIRAM CREDIT COMPANY LIMITED

21 |Sagrmnl Reporting

Tha Group is engaged in financing, share broking. distribution of financial produets, commodities broking and wealth managemer businesses. Segment R , Segment Resuits, Si
Assets and Segment Lisbiliies Incude the respactive amounts identifiable to each of the segments. Tha Group op in single geographical segment. Deferred tax asset is nol included in the
segmen assets. Minornty inferest is not part of segment fiabilities
As at 31-03-2023
Rs. In Lacs
Financlal
Farticulars Financing Stock” | Products Woealth
9| Distri Management Total
Segment Revenue 554889 | 1100848 | 1751623 127887 | 3535227
Profit Before Tax (203.54) {537.72) {223.84) 61.02 {903.17)
Less: Income Taxes 31.26 13.78 175 {36.67) 2111
Nat Profit Afler Tax {234.80) (551.49) (235.55) a7.50 (924.29)
(Other Information
Sagment Assots 8,508.67 35121.76 417124 874083 | 5684080
Sagment Liahiites 3,08582 17 685.01 230894 1224491 2430827
(Capital Expenditure - - - - -
Depreciation 69.77 50129 38473 51781 100784
Other Non Cash Expenditure (2.79) 19.30 - - 15.50
22 Reconciliation of Basic and Diluted shares used in computing eamings per share {As per Accounting Standard 20}
Particulars AMarf2y 3Mani22
Mo. of shares considerad as basis waighted ge shares outstanding 24083128 24063129
Add: Effect of dihtiva issues of shares - .
Number of shares iderad as weighted age sharas and potential shares cutstanding 2.40,83,129 24063129
22 Provious years figures have bean regruped / gad wh t ¥ canforming 1o current yesr's classification.
24 |Details of CSR exponditure:
Particutars For the period ended
3-Mar-23 | 31-Mar-22
Groes amount required to be spent by the compary during the year 11.36[ 16.78
Amount spent during the period - .
| Amount unspent b sap Bank A 11.86 1678
25 |During the period enced 31at March 2023, the company has subscribed 50 crores compulsorily convertible preference sharas {CCPs) of Re. 1/ each of Shiiram Assat Management Company
Lid. Company's shane of Stamp Duty paid b ds Subscnption of af i I has bean capltalsed.
b3

As on ITON022 & IMWR022, there are no oulstanding dues In Micro and small enterprses.

The Board af its Meeting held on February 10, 2023 had epproved the proposal of schame of amalgamation betwsen Mfs. Shriram Credit Company Limited {*Transferee Compary™) and its
whodly owned subsidiary companybis. Shriram Financial Products Solution {Chennal) Private Limited {"Transferor Company’), pursuant to provisions of Section 233 and cther appiicable
provisions, if any of the Companias Act, 2013,

Further, on satisfaction of all the condiions as specified in the Scheme, The Regional Director, Chennai, vide order dated April 18, 2023 has approved the Schema under Section 233 of the
Companies Act, 2013 with effect from January 1, 2023 {Appointed Date).

The amalgamation was accounted as & commen cantro) business combination in accordance with tha acoounting prescribed under “Paoling of Interest Methed” as lald down in Appendix C of Ind
JAS 103 (Business Combinations of entities undar commen control) and as par the specific provisions of the schema.  Accordingly, the schems has been given effect to in these financial

Jstatements and all assets, liabiities and reserves and incorne and expenditure of the Transf Company stand transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company subject 16 value of

rwastments heid by the transferes company in the transfersr company and intarampany balances betwsen the trensferas company and the fransfaror company appearing in the books stand
cancated pursuant to amalgamation.
W/t Insight Commodities & Futures Private Limited {"Transferor Company"} was amalgamated with Ws Shriram Ingight Share Brokers Limited ("Transferae Company™), & subsidiary company of

Shriram Credil Company Limited (SCCL), with effect from January 1, 2022 vide order of the Regional Director, Chennai, dated May 19, 2022 which was recaived post finalization of SCCL
Consolid f ial Stab for FY 2021-22, now given effect to in this Financial Staterments.

Akhllesh Kumar 51

\ s v Bﬁecnam " ll\lua:agmgolmdor
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uo 2305037.713@\_{58 4637 N aNL

Trina Nandi
Place: Mumbai l:ic‘F'xr(!.‘wher:mai i

Date:10.05.2023 Date:10.05.2023

For and an behal of the Board of Drectors of
Shriram Credit pany Limitad
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Shriram Credlt Company Limited N

Employee benefits
a) Defined conbibution plan
Contribution 1o Diefined Contribution Plans, recognised as an expense for the year is as under: Rs. In Lacs
Particulars For the period ended | For the period ended 314
31-03-2023 03-2022
Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund (includes pension fund) ) 588.00 582.87

by Defined bonefit plans
The Company has funced the gratity liabiiity ascertained on actuarial basis, wherein every emplayes who has completed five years or more of service is enlitied 1o gratuity on retirement or
rasignabion or death calculated at 15 days salary for each completed year of service, without any ceiling limi. The vesling period for Gratuity as payabie under The Payment of Gratuity Act s 5
years.

The plans in India typicalty expose the Company to actuarial fisks such as: invesiment risk, interest rale risk, longsvity risk and salary risk.

Investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate delermined by reference Lo govemment bond yields; if the retum on plan asset is below
this rate, it will create a plan deficit.

Interast risk: A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offsel by an increase in the retum on the plan's debt investments.

Longevity fisk: The present value of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculated by reference Lo the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment.
An increase in the Bfe expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's fiability.

Salary risk: Tha present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants
will increase the plan's labifity.

There are no other post-retirement benefits provided to employees.
The most recent actuarial vahuation of the ptan assets and the present vafue of the defined benefit obligation were camied out at 31 March 2022. The present vaiue of the defined benefit
obligation, and the related current service cost and pasl service cost, were measured wsing the projected unit credil method,

Gratulty (Funded}
Particulars 310342023 322022
Liability recognized in the Bal Sheet
Present valua of defined bengfit obligati )
Cpening Bal 1,196.16 1,252.29
Current Service Cost 8157 20617
Past Seqvice Cost - N
Cost 81.82 8411
Actuarial Loss/{Gain) on obiigation (27.88} (104.12}
Liability trangfred In fAcquisitions 2340 (2.08}
Banefits paid {65.85) 1113 90
Liability Tt 11ln 884 -
Liakility T i d ouit (288.72) -
Closing Bal 1,008.15 1,322.57
Less: Fair Vane of Pisn Assets
Opening Balance a7.02 221.27
Expected Rehumn on Plan assets less less on investments 718 17.41
Actuarial {Less)!Gain on Plan Assels {0.38) 317
Employers' Contributi . 98.04
Benefits paid - {28.20)
Retum on Plan Assets excluding Expected Income - 257
Closing Balanca 103.82 307,92
A nt recognized In Bal Sheet 905.33 1,014.65
Exp during the year
Current Service cost 8157 11212
Past Senvice cost - -
Interest cost 8162 3849
Expected Retumn on Plan assets 718 -
Component of defined benefit cost recagnized in stat t of profit & loss 156.02 150.61
Rerr t of net defined benefit Kability
- Actuarial Less/{Gain) on defined benefit cbligation {12.83) {132.08)
- Actuarial LassA{zain) on Plan Assets 028 .60
Companent of defined banefit cost gnized in other compreh {13.45) (131.48)
Total 142.57 19.13
[Actual Retum on plan assats - 1364




Princlpal actuarial assumptions
Particulars 310372023 3032023
Discount Rate 7.30% 10 7.52% 6.80% o 7.33%
Expecied rateis) of salary increase 5% to 9.74% 5% to 9.74%
E 4ed nefum on plan assels B.00% 8.00%
Attrition rate 2% to 39% 2% fo 39%
Mortality rate during empleyment
Indian assured kves Incian assured lives
mortality 2012-2014 UR. |[muortality 2012-2014 UK
Expertence adjuskments Rs. In Lacs
Particulars 3H03/2023 032022
Defined Benefit Obligation 34.34 1.822.57
Plan Assets 103.82 792
S / (Deficit) (81.03) (1.014.65)
Experiance Adustments on Plan Lisbiliies — {Loss)iGain 241) 18.79
Exp Adustments on Plan Assets — (Loss)Gain {13.00) 317}
In ing the Campany’s post liabilities, the G Y monitcrs Y ptions and uses up-to date mortality tables, the base being the Indian assured lives mortality (2012-
14} utimate.

Expected retun on plan assets Is based on expectation of the average lony term rate of retum expecled on investments of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations after considering
several appiicable factors such as the composition of plan assets, Investment strategqy, market scenario, efe.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment
markel.

The discount rate is based on the p 0
date for the estmated term of the obfigations.

The amount included in the financial statements arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined berefit

1t of India securilies as at the halance sheet

ket yields of G

plan is as folows:

Particulars 31/03/2023 _' 1/03/2022
Defined Benefit Obligation 452 68 1,322.57
Plan Assets 103.82 307 .92
Ne (liablity) /asset sriskvg from defined benefit obligation (348.86) (1.014.65)
Sensitivity Anatysis:

Significant achuarial assumptions for the detertnination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rale, expected

Inpact on Defined benefit obligation

Particulars Increase! {Decrease)

3170312023 3170312022
Discount rate - 1% Increase {77.28) 26144
Discount rate - 1% Decrease 131.39) 30391
Futwa salary growth - 1% | 19.59) 0372
Future salary growth - 1% D (68.82)] 261.25
Altrition rate - 1% Increase 29,59| 281.90
Adtrition rate - 1% Decrease 15.22| 200,92

The sensiiivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obfigation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isoiation
of one another as some of the jons may be cometated

D its the weig ge of the exp ining fetime of all plan

The average expected remaining ifetima of the plan members is 6 years as al the valuation date which
participants.

The Company had deployed its mvestment assets in an insurance plan which is invested in market linked bonds. The investment
i rates as 2d with the §

of the finked plan are sensitive to the changes in
t retums from the smooth retumn investment plan. The liabdiies’ duration is not matched with the assets' duration.

The kabilities of the fund are funded by assets. The compasty aimns to maintain a ciese 1o ful-furding position al each Balance Sheet date. Future expected contributions are disclosed based on
this principle.

¢} Other long-term employee benafits,
Provision for long term compensated absences are measured by acluarial valuation in accordancs with ind AS-19




Shriram Credit Company Limited

INCOME TAXES

Indian companies are subject to Indian income tax on a standalone basis. Each entity is assessed to tax on taxable profits determined for each fiscal year beginning on
lApril 1 and ending on March 31,

Statutery income taxes are assessed based on book profits prepared under generally accepted accounting principies in India adjustec in accordance with the provisions|
of the {indian) Income tax Act, 1961. Such adjustments generaily reiate to depreciation of fixed assets, disallowances of certain provisions and accruals, deduction for|
tax holidays, the set-off of tax losses and depreciation carried forward and retirement benefit costs. Statutory income tax is charged at 25% plus a surcharge and

education cess.

|Income tax expenses Rs. In Lacs
Particulars For the year ended
3110312023 31/0312022
Current tax:
Current tax 35593 167.27
Tax pertaining to earlier years 78.95 84.22
|Deferred tax {413.77} 3539
Total 21.11 286.88

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to accounting profit before tax at th
[recognised for the year is indicated below:

e statutory income tax rate to income tax expense

Particulars For the year ended
31/03/2023 31/03/2022

Profit before tax {903.17) 341.52
Enacted tax rate in India

Expacted income tax expense at statutory tax rate (15210} 202.30

[ax impact on account of -

Depreciation under Income-tax Act {21.14} {22.59)
Provision against loans & advances - . {8.82)
Expenses allowed only on payment basis - . 13.54
Expenses not deductitde in determining taxable profits a0.26 115.57
Income not taxable - Dividend, interest from tax free bongs - -
Deductions allowable under tax laws {0.26) 13.88
Short term and Long term capital gain chargeabls at different rates 398 118
Qthers 100.38 {30.45)
Total 211 286.38
{Effective income tax rate # -2.34% 24.00%
r# Effective income tax rate has been cakeulted by dividing total tax expenses by profit before tax.

Current Tax Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
Current tax Assets (Net) 2 684.09 1,502.80

[Deferred Tax Liabilities

Particulars As at As at
31-03-2023 31.03-2022
|Deferred Tax Asset:
On account of depreciation 308.96 {33.79)
On account of employee benehts 275.24 8.01
Ind As Adjustment on Security Deposit 0.63 (B.05)
Ind A= Adjustment on Lease 41.99
MAT Cradit 300,93 92.48
Others 639.05 {1,294 83)
Deferred Tax Liabllity: -
Mutual fund and other investments (245.35) 324.38
Deferred Tax {Asset)/Liabilitles (Net} {1,319.46} {911.60)

The majority of the deferred tax balance represents differential rates of depreciation for property plant and equipment under income tax act and disallowance,
of certain expenditure under income tax act. Significant components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognized in the financial statements are as follows:




Shriram Cradit Company Limited

Disclosure as required by ind AS 116
As lesseo:

The Company has entered into commercial leases for leasing of premises. These leases have an average life of 2-10 years which are
renewable on a pericdic basis by mutual consent of both parties. There is no resircition imposed by lease arrangements such as those

conceming dividends, additional debts efc.

Rs. In Lacs
Particulars 31/03/2023 3110372022
@ Expense relating ta shart-term feases accounted for 547.00 535.68
applying paragraph 6 of Ind AS 116*
®) Hincome from subleasing of right-of-use assets eamed 22 92 10.09
‘during the period
© Tota! cash outfiow for leases during the period 86229 906.92
d
@ Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the 1,004 .44 1,050.52
|reporting pericd
Maturity Analysis of lease undiscounted liabllities Rs. In Lacs
<t year 1-5 years > Syears Total
As at 31-03-2023 184 83 1,940.65 2,125.48
As at 31-03-2022 334.08 1,808.54 2,142.62

*The company has elected to apply para 6 of Ind AS 118 for short term leases and leases of low-value assets. As per the same, the
compnay has recognised the lease payments associated with those leases as an expenses in the Statement of profit and loss account.

For right-of-use assets which meet the definition of investment property, the disclosures given in (a), (b).& (d) of the abwve table are

given in Note 2 of the financial statemenits.
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures- NONE
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint Ventures

Name of Associntes/Joint Ventures Name 1 Name 2 Name 3
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date

N.A. . N.A. N.A.
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures
held by the company on the year end N.A N.A. N.A.
MNa.
| Amount of Investment in
Associates/Toint Venture NA. NA. N-A.
Extend of Holding % N.A. N.A. N.A.
3: D!:scripti'on of how there is NA. NA. NA.
significant infiuence
4. Reason why the associate/joint
venture is not consolidated NA. N.A. N.A.
5. Networth attributable to

N.A. N.A. N.A.
Shareholding as per latest audited A
Ralance Sheet N.A, N.A. N.A.
6. Profit/ Loss for the year N.A N.A. N.A.
i. Considered in Consolidation N.A MN.A. NA.
i. Mot Considered in Consolidation N.A. N.A. N.A.

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are yet to commence operations. - Nil
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year. - Nil

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
i Credit Company Limited

h MR usHun
Managing Director
DIN : 00492377

Tos Nk

Trina Nandi
Company Secretary

AXhilesh Kumar 5j
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